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About Netcall

Netcall 1s the UK's market leading provider of Customer Engagement Solutions With over 20 years

expenence and a client base of over 800 crganisations, Netcall has established tself as a major UK player
with a growing international reputation in the comrmunications ndustry

Netcall's solutions provide end-to-end customer engagement, incorporating CallBack, Data Unification,

Intelligent Call Handling, Smart Autormnation and Workforce Management, Cur clients span both the

private and public sectors and are organisations of all sizes, including many blue-chip companies with
global contact centre operations

Customers want to contact Companes often store When a customer neads to Customers aren't concemed
you on therr terms, n a managemernt wfomation speak with you, they wani if & onganesation s spiit nito
manner that suits therm — fact!  across a vanety of back office to do it quickly and without vanous functions to manage
Our CellBack solutions prowde systems Howaver, problems disruption the service they offer Howaver,
you with the technoiogy 1o can occur when data from Our inteligent Call Handiing they do expect a ‘one stop
offer your customers choce 6ach system need to come solsbons allow organtsations shop’ when dealing wath you
Whether this 1s grang them together to prorade busmness to connect with the Our Smant Automation
the option to request & calt nsight customers 1n a way that solutions enable you to jn
back rether than quews In an Our Data Unification solutions customers axpect — hassle all the dements of your
automatad phone system, or simpliy the most complax free They naver need know organisabon together that are
make contact with you online data mtegrabon chaanges that the person they connect raquired 10 deliver a seamiass
and request a call back at a provde you and your team with 18 worlang remotely or plattorm for your customens to
tima that suits them with a single paint to access that they have queue umped angage with Whether thusis
and manage information and routed though threa in the form of an ondine portal,
connecting to legacy, departments before speaking a contact centre or front dask
enterpnse or on-dermand to the comect parson to deal SeMvICes
applications from any location with thesr request
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Highlights “We have significantly
increased our organisational
capability and customer
ase”

Revenue Adjusted EBITDA" Adjusted Earnings

up 229% up 156% per Share

to £13 62m (2010 ¢4 13m) to £2 75m @o10 £1.07m up 34%

to 1 57p poto 1 17p)

201

. ! X
w10 wasam o e276m 167p
—_—
2000 £413m 2008 £107m 2008 117p
1
£8 83m £6 86m 110p

Financial Highlights

-~ Revenue Increased 229% to £13 62 million (2010
£4 13 million) reflecting the successful acquisition of
Telephonetics dunng the period

~= Adjusted EBITDA" increased by 156% to £2 75 million
(2010 £1 07 mulion)

~= Adjusted earnings per share® increased 34% to 1 57p
{2010 117p)

~= Maiden dvidend of O 4p per share proposed

~ Revenue of a recumng nature of £9 32 million
corresponding to 68% of total revenue

— Cash generated from operations increased 189% {o
£2 20 mithon (2010 £0 786 milion) before acquisition
and reorgamsation payments

- Debt-free balance sheet with net cash funds of
£5 83 millon (2010 £2 45 mulion)

Operational Highlights

~= Successiul acquisition of Telephonetics increased
market presence and expanded product portfolio

—= Completed integration, realising annual cost savings
of £1 8 million

~ Significant cross-seling pineline bullt with intial
orders won

~4 New Appointment Management Cycle product
developed from combined technologies resulting in
first wins

~= 25% Increase N business from new customers

~ Placing of shares at 19p raising £4 25 millon during
the year

(1) Profit befora nterest taxation, depreciation, amortisabion, acquisibon and restructunng expenses and share-based payments
(2) Earmings per share befora amortisation of acqured ntangible assets, acquisition and restructunng expenses, share-based charges, adjusted to a standard rate of

GOporation tax
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‘Our headline strategy isto
broaden and cross-fertilise our
product suite and expand our
customer base”

Revenue

up 229%

£13 62m 2010 £4 13m)

Operational Cash Flow

up189°/0

£2 20m eoto £o 76m)

Chairman’s and Chief Executive’s Review

Introduction Netcall continues to demonstrate ncreasing financial strength
The Board 1s pleased to report that the Company has perforrmed Revenues of a recumng nature now exceed the fixed cost base of
ahead of market expectations and has made good progress over  the Group and the business s highly cash generative, delivenng

the last 12 months followang the acquisttion of Telephonetics over £2 millon it operating cash flows for the year to bring net |
Group revenue for the year mare than trebled to £13 62 million cash balances to £5 9 milion at the year end At 31 August the net I
(2010 £4 13 mulon), adjusted EBITDA increased by 156% to cash balance had increased further to over £6 5 million '

£2 75 millon (2010 £1 07 million) and adjusted earnings per share

increased by 34% to 1 57p (2010. 1 17p) Importantly, we secured our first cross-sale contracts into the
enlarged customer base dunng the second half of the vear,

The Board 1s confident that the levels of profit and cash generationare  including cross-sales of Eden and ContactCentre 59R into QMax

sustainable and s therefore delighted to propose a maiden dvidend  customers and QueueBuster into NHS Trust customers

of 0 4 perce per share at the forthcorming Annual General Mesting

The Mowiglune service remains a good source of cash generation

The significant reorganisation of the business following the and one which we continue to actvely support Dunng the year we
acquisition of Telephonetics in July 2010 has been successfully agreed a new multi-year supply contract on improved terms with
completed, achiewing annualised net cost savngs of over €1 8 our Telecom prowders, upgraded the Mowvieline user interface and
million while creating enhanced growth prospects for the enlarged  as a result were delighted to secure a multi-year contract renewal
business Aganst this backdrop of considerable organisational with a key cinema customer

and operational activity, we rscorded 25% growth in business from

new customers for the Group’s products such as QueueBuster, Financial Review

ContactPortal and Remind+ and expanded our market share Group revanue for the year was £13 62 millton (2010 £4 13

In our key segments of NHS Hospital Trusts, Local Authonhies milion), the increase reflecting the impact of the Telephonetics
and Contact Centres This increase in market share has besn acquisttion The breakdown of contnbution to total revenues was
partially masked when comparnng these results to histonc pro- as follows

forma revenues due to the contnbution of a refresh programmae of

Telephonetics’ SEMAP+ platform in the previous year e SaaS (Software as a Service), mantenance and support
contract revenues increased to £7 42 millicn (2010 £3.28

‘Achieving annualised milor)

e product and professional service revenues increased to £4 29

Net cost Savings while milon (2010 £0 85 million), and

revenuas from Talephonetics’ Moveline serace of €1 91

Y L]
Cr ea‘tlﬂg eﬂhar]ced grO\/\/‘th mdhon {2010 €ni} As expected, pro-forma revenues from
the Movieline service showed a decline yaar on year due the

n
pr OSpeCtS continued shift of transactions to the Internat
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Case Study — Anderson Anderson & Brown LLP

Anderson Anderson & Brown LLP ks one of the leading chartered accountancy firms in Scotland
offering services to a wide range of clients with vanyng financial and taxaton requirements.

To meet client needs the firm was using a number of different systerns which could not be easlly
mtegrated together without compromising integnty or incurring great cost. Consequently,

gathenng data for clien ts was time-consuming and inefficient

Eden Single View was implemented to help streamiine muttiple data processes creating a single

interface bringing together data from disparate systems.

As a result of implementing Eden Single View the firm have been able to ensure

& Single view of cllent data improving staff efficiency

# KPI| data recorded daily to provide senior management with an accurate and current

measurement of divisional performance
¢ Data accuracy and consistency across disparate systems

Reverue of a recumng nature, from the Group's hosied platforms,
mamntenance and support agreements, was £9 32 millon being
68% of total ravenue {2010 79%) and 1s £10 0 mullion on a pro-
forma annualised basis, providing good wvisibility for future penods

Gross profit margin was 87% compared to 91% In the same
period last year, due to a change n product mix resutting from the
acquistions  This compares to pro-forma gross profit margin in
2010 of 85%

Administrative expenses before depreciation, amortisation,
acquisihion and restructunng expenses and share-based charges
increased to £9 10 milllon (2010 £2 69 million) as a resutt of the
acquisthion of Telephonetics Pro-forma administrative expenses
were 8% lower at £9 80 milhion (2010 £10 56 milion} reflecting the
impact of net cost savings In the penod of approximately £1 milton
offset by inflationary increases and additional nvestment into sales
and marketing

“We recorded 25% growth
iN business from new
customers”

Approximataly, £1 8 million of annualised cost savings have been
achieved, compnsing £1 4 millon in staff costs and a £0 4 million
recuction in duplicate costs of being AIM quoted and the number
of office locations

Consequently, the Group recorded a 156% increase in adjusted
EBITDA to £2 75 milion (2010 £1 07 miliron), a margm of 20%,
which was ahsad of market expectations due to the mproved
gross margn, earlker than expected realisation of cost-savings
from the Telephonetics integration and an ongoing focus on cost
managsment

This adjusted EBITDA, after taking into account one-off
reorganisation and acquisition costs of £0 91 milion and
amortisation of acquired intangible assets of £0 91 milion, resulted
tn a profit before tax figure of £0 54 million for the penod (2010
loss £0 25 million)

The Group benefited from the utiisation of tax logses brought
forward and has recorded a tax credit of £0 14 mullion (2010
£0 26 milion tax credit)

Adjusted eamnings per shareincreased 34% to 1 57p (2010 1 17p)
Reported earnings per share increased to 0 58p (2010 0 04p)

Cash generated from operations before acquisition and
reorganisation paymants increased to £2 20 milion (2010 2076
million) a conversion of 80% adjusted EBITDA (2010 719%)

The Group raised £4 25 muflon before expenses in the penod
through the 1ssue of 22,368,420 shares at 19 pence per share at
a premium of 38% to the prevaiing mid-market pnce on the day
before the announcement of the placing The net proceeds of the
placing were used to part finance the acquisition of Telephonetics
and for general worleng caprtal requirements

The Group used £2 53 million of cash dunng the penod In
acquinng and integrating Telephonsetics, compnising £1 08 milkon
in cash consideration (net of cash acquired), and £1 47 mithon

of acquisttion and reorgarnisation cost payments A further £0 30
millon of reorganisation costs are included in current labilties

at 30 June 2011 and are expected to be paid dunng the next
financial year

As a result of these factors, cash increased by £3 44 milion (2010
outfiow £1 71 milion) The Group continues to maintain a debt-
free balance sheet and had net cash funds of £5 8 miflion at

30 June 2011
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“This synergistic combination of
proven technologies provides a
differentiated offering from that

of our competitors”

Chairman’s and Chief Executive’s Review continued

Strategy

{n order to buld and retain long-term shareholder value, the
Board remains committed to s ongoing investment in s sutte of
contact centre and enterpnise call management solutions These
combine to deliver a complete solutton for end-to-end customer
engagement, enabling our customers to iImprove the productmvty
and quality of therr customer interactions

The Board believes that the current economic climate serves to
increase the importance of effective customer engagement as

an integral component of our customers’ business strategies

In the pnvate sector there I1s a growing emphasis on customer
retention and repeat business, and in the public sector, Local
Authonties and NHS Trusts are being required to deliver more to
therr citizens with less resource In addition, we believe that our
custormners are ncreasingly looking to source solutions which can
be introduced into an orgarisation n phases, to provide step-by-
step improvernent, and which have the potental to be extended
Into other areas of their business

Our headline strategy 1s therefors to continue to broaden and
cross-fertiise our product surte of contact centre and enterpnse
call management solutions, expand our customer base in targeted
niches and increass the number of apphcations used by sach
customer

In addrion to organic growth, the fragmented nature of the contact

centre and enterpnse call management solutions market provides
Netcall with the opportunity to extend ts market reach, broaden
its product sute and further increase operational efficiencies The

Acquisition of Telephonetics

Netcall started the penod well placed in the CallBack and
Workforce Management contact centre markets In ine with our
strategy, we have successiully broadened our product portfolio

to include Inteligent Call Handlng, Smart Automation and Data
Unification products with the acqusition of Telephonetics in July
2010 for £8 9 million, which also added significant market share in
niches such as NHS Hospital Trusts and Local Authonties

The Board has been extremely pleased by the results of the
integration programme We have identified over £1 8 milion

of annualised net cost savings, which 1s ahead of our onginal
estimates, while Investng in key arsas such as sales, marksting
and product development

The inhal ntegration of the product platforms 1s now complste,
with all ‘on-premise’ versions of the enlarged product surte able

to interact and share appropnate resources and technology The
next phase will be to Increase the number of cloud-based versions
of our products, such as our Workforce Management and (VR
solutions to enable our customers to choosa the deployment
model surtable for them while continuing to expand the integration
of the product sets to ennch ther functionality

"Effective customer

engagement as an
integral component of

Board therefore continues to consider accelerating growth through OUI’ CUStom erS’ bUS| ﬂeSS

selective acquistions

strategies’
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Case Study — Rushcliffe Borough Council

The Customer Services Team wision at Rusheliffe Borough Council is clear — ‘Rushcliffe
residents will have access to Council services in locations and at imes convenlent to

them by thelr chosen method of communication’

With a falling incurnbent ACD system and new remote locations to support it was agreed that a
solution was required to grow with thelr vision and continue to deliver service excellence

Netcall's ContactCentre S8R ACD system was deployed to support the Civic Cantre and

six remote Shared Services sites It anables

o Staff to handle call centre calls at Shared Contact Points, often in police stations

@ Scalable solution that integrates with back office systems

By supporting remote working 1n a shared service environment, ContactCentrs 59R
enables Rushchiffe to deliver therr customer service vislon, and work in partnership with

Nottinghamshire Police services

“The Board continues to
consider accelerating
growth through selective
acquisitions”

We have mvested considerable effort dunng the year on the
integration and training of the enlarged sales team regarding the
new product sets, whils repositioruing and branding the enlarged
product portfolio and centralising the sales support functions

1o enable greater focus This process 1s now complete and the
encouraging inial levels of cross sales together with an improving
overall sales order trend for the quarters following the acquisition
gve the Board confidence in the execution of the strategy

Business Development

We have been pleased with the number of new customers
signed dunng the year, securing contracts with some of the UK's
leading organisations in the private sector, such as Nestle and AA
DriveTech, while adding 18 Local Authorties and NHS Trusts We
have also continued to win intermational QueueBuster business
dunng the penod

We are continuing to develop allances wrth distnbution partners
where they help increase our penetration into cora markets
Including orgarusations such as Stemen Communications, BT and
Cable & Wireless

With the majority of our 800 strong customer base currently
utiising a sub-set of the entire customer engagement portfolio

we belteve the cross sale cpportunity to be signficant Each
solution can operate standalone or as part of a fully mtegrated
communications platform Each of our current customers already
benefits from the increased operational efficencies, service levels
and cost reductions which our solutions provide These benefits
have the potential to be augmented through the implementation of
addiional Group solutions

We continue to nvest in product development with total investment
in excess of £1 million in the year (2010 £0 1 millon} In addition to
the product ntegration programme we have broadened our product
portfolio by developing new solutions from our exsting technologies
An example of this 1s Appomtment Managemesnt Cycle for the health
sector which combines Smart Automation, Inteligent Call Handling
and CallBack technology and s planned to be further enhanced

by the inclusion of resource management and data integration in
the future This synergistic combination of proven technologies
provides a differentiated offerng from that of our compettors with
an increased value proposthon to our customers We have had
earty sales of this new product, Appointment Management Cycle,
including new customers such as Ipswich Hosprtal NHS Trusts

A further area of nvestrment in response to customer demand and
recent key wins will be in our premise-based and cloud-based
payment product which operates within customers' Payment

Card Industry Data Secunty Standards {(‘PCI-DSS") compliant
environments driven by Medium-term developments include
entarging the partfolio with new products in key product categornes
such as mutti-media

Outlook

Netcall has started the year wel with sales orders ahead of this
time last year and a strengthened balance sheet Whilst the Board
remains mindful of the economic cimate, Netcall’s developing
pipeline together with the full year impact of cur cost savings
programime and the ncreased scale of the business, give the Board
confidence In actieving a successful outcome for the year ahead

Michael Jackson Henrik Bang
Chatrman CEO
23 September 2011
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Officers and Professional Advisers

Chairman

Michael Jackson"-{60} joined the Board in March 2008 He founded Elderstreet
Investments Lirited in 1990 and 1s its Executive Chaiman For the past 25 years, he has
speciaised in raising finance and investing in the smaller companies quoted and unquoted
sector Michaet has been Charman of two FTSE 100 companies and from 1987 until August
2006 was Chairman cf The Sage Group plc

Chief Executive Officer

Henrik Bang (53} joined Netcall in January 2004 Previously he was Vice President in GN
Netcom 1999-2004, part of the Danish OMX listed GN Great Nordic Group Before that he
held a number of international management posricns in IBM and AP Moller-Maersk Line

Group Finance Director

James Ormondroyd (39) was appointed to the Netcall Board on the acquisition of
Telephonetics plc on 30 July 2010 where he served as the Finance Director and Company
Secretary for 5 years, previously he was the Finance Director and Company Secretary at
World Television Group pic He 1s a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales

Non-Executive Directors

Roger Allsop*/~ (68) joined the Board in 1987 He s a Non-Executive Director of Tncorn
Group ple, chairman of Malvarr Properties Ltd and was also formerty Managing Director of
Woestwood Dawes plc

Mark Brooks (47) was appointed to the Netcall Board on 30 July 2010 following the
acquisition of Telephonetics plc where he was a Non-Executive Director from 2008
Praviousty he co-founded Voice Integrated Products Ltd in 1991, which was acqured by
Telephonstics plc in 2006

Michael Neville"A~ (56) was appointed to the Netcall Board on 30 July 2010 followang
the acquistion of Telephonetics plc where he served as a Non-Executve Chairman
from July 2005 He has extensive experience in capital markets and serves as a Non-
Executive Director for a number of AIM quoted companies His background is in the
telecommunications, technology and media arena

*  denotes membership of the Audrt sub-committea of the Board
A denotas membership of the Remunerabon sub-committee of the Board
~  denotes membership of the Nomnation sub-comsmuttee of the Board

Company registration number:
1812912

Registered office:
3rd Floor

Hamiton House
111 Marlowes
Hemel Hempstead
HP11BB

Directors:

M Jackson

H Bang

J Omondroyd
R Allsop

M Brooks

M Newille

Secretary:
M Greensmith

Bankers:
National Westminster Bank plc
Cambndge

Lloyds TSB Bark plc
Hemel Hempstead

Nominated advisers:
Evoluton Securthies Ltd
100 Wood Street
London

EC2v7AN

Registrars:

Newvile Registrars Limited
Neville House

18 Laurel Lane
Halesowen

B63 3BR

Solicitors:
TaylorWessing
London

Omme & Slade
Ledbury

Audrtors:

Grant Thornton UK LLP
Registered Auditors
Chartered Accountants
Cambndge
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Report of the Directors

The Dwrectors present therr report and the audited financial statements of Netcall Pic (the ‘Company’ ‘Netcall’} and the Group for the

year ended 30 June 2011

Principal activities

Netcall 1s a lsading provider of end-to-end customer engagement software and services to the healthcare, public and prvate sectors

Bustness review and future developments

A review of the development and performance of the Group's business during the year, its position at the year-end and ndication
of Iikely future developments is provided in the Chaiman's and Chief Executive’s review (which have besn incorporated mto this report

by reference}

The Bxrectors’ monitor a wide range of financial and operating measures to track the Group's progress There are six core key

performance indicators ("KPIs') which are set out below

2011 2010 Change
Revenus (Tm) 13.62 413 229%
Revenue recurning in nature (Em) 932 343 172%
Gross profit margin (%) 87% 91% -4%
Adjusted EBITDA (£m) 275 107 156%
Cash generated from operations before acquisition and
reorganisation paymsnts (Em) 220 076 189%
Total equity {Em) 14.01 502 179%
Dividends authonsation Third parties may also challenge the validity and/

A dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2011 of 0 4
pence per share, amounting to a total dwdend of £488,000,
wili be propesed at the Annual General Meeting to be held on
24 November 2011 No dwvdend was paid in the years ended
30 June 2010 or 2011

Research and development

The Group continues an active programme of research and
development into telecoms software and products  The total charge
in the Consolidated Income staternent for research and daveloprent
excluding amortisation was £1 01 milion (2010 £108,000)

Principal risks and uncertainties

The prncipal nsks facing the Group and discussed by the Board
relate broadly to its acquistion strategy, Inteflectual property, the
market place and competitive environment, dependence on key
peopls and information technology

Acqustions The Group's strategy indudes seekung acquistions of
companies or businesses that are complementary to its businasses
As a consequence thers 1S & nsk that management’s attention may
be dwverted and the Group's ongoing business may be disrupted or
the Group may fall to retain key acquired personnel, or encounter
difficuties in integrating acquired operations In order to migate
thus nsk management communicate widely and closely monitors
detalled ntegration plans

inteflectual property nghts ('IFR’) The Group s reliant on IPR
surrounding its internally generated and licensed-in software,
whilst it relies upon [PR protections including patents, copynghts
and contractual provistons it may be possible for third parties
to obtain and use the Group's intellectual property without its

or enforceability of the Group's IPR  In addrtion, the Directors
are aware of the supply nsk of losing key software partners This
would have a short-term impact on the Group as it sought to
identfy and then train staff in alternative products The Group's
product Board regularty monttors contracts and reviews and
evaluates alternate suppliers

Market place and competition The secior the Group operates

In and/or routes to market may undergo rapid and unexpected
changes or not develop &t a pace in ine with the Directors’
expectations It 1s also possible that competitors will develop
similar products, the Group’s technology may become obsolete
or less effective, or that consumers use alternative channels

of commumication, which may reduce demand for the Group's
products and services In addition, the Group's success depends
upon its ability to develop new, and enhance existing products on
a tmely and cost-effective basis, that meet changing customer
requirements and incorporate technological advancements As a
result, the Group continues to invest in marketing and research
and development

Key personnef The Group depends on the services of its

key techrical, operations, sales, marketing and management
personnel The loss of the senices of any one or more of these
persons could have a matenal adverse effect on the Group's
business The Group mantans an actve policy to identrfy, hire,
tran, motivate and retain highly skilled personnel In key functions

Information technology" Data secunty and business continuity
pose iInherent nsks for the Group The Group nvests in and keeps
under review formal data secunty and business continutty policies
which are independently audied
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Report of the Directors continued

Political and charitable donations and political expenditure
There were chantable donations dunng the year of £2,000 (2010
£nily In accordance with the Board's policy no political donations
were made or expenditure incurred during the year

Post balance sheot events
For detalls of post balance sheet events see note 29 of the
consolidated financial statements

Directors

The Dirsctors who held office dunng the year ended 30 June 2011
are as follows

Hennk Bang Chief Executive

James Ormondroyd* Group Finance Director

Michael Jackson Charman

Non-Executive Director
Non-Executrve Director
Non-Executrve Director

Roger Allsop
Mark Brooks®
Michael Nevills®

* Appomted on the 30 July 2010

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
Henrik Bang and James Ormondroyd retire by rotation and, being
elgible, offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General
Mesting to be held on 24 Novernber 2011

Directors’ interest in the ordinary share capital of the
Company

30 June 2011 30 June 2010
Executive Directors
Henrk Bang 930,000 930,000
Non-Executive Directors
Roger Allsop 1,250,000 1,250,000
Michael Jacksont 800,000 800,000
Michas| Newille 247,548 —

% Of which 200,000 shares are held by Michael Jackson and Richard Jackson
as trustees of the WAE Jackson Trust whose beneficianes are the children and
remoter issus of Michael Jackson

There has been no change in the interests set out above between
30 June 2011 and 22 September 2011 Interests in share options
are set out below

Directors’ remuneration

As the Cormpany 1S quoted on the Altemative Investment Market
(AIM) it 18 not required to set out ts remuneration policy but s
doing so on a voluntary basts As required by AIM Rule 19, the
Company has disclosed below the remuneration recenved by its
Directors dunng the financial year

The Company's policy 1s to remunerate Directors appropnately
to secure the skills and expensnce the Group needs to meet its
objectivas and reward them for enhancing shareholder value and
retums Each review s set in the context of the Group’s needs,
indmdual responsibiiies, parformance and market practice

The main components of Executive Director remuneration compnse

basic salary

performance related bonus

defined contmbution to personal pension plan

other benefits such as car alowances, medical and [fe assurance
shars opticn scheme

The Executrve Directors participate in a bonus plan linked to the
achievement of financial and indmdual performance targets set
by the Remuneraton Committee The bonus plan is structured
$0 as pay 100% and 75% of selary for Hennk Bang and James
Ormoendroyd respectively, on achieving targets Bonuses payable
are subjsct to the discretion of the Remuneration Committee after
taking into account an cverall view of the Group's performances
and its assessment of strategic and personal performance In the
year ended 30 Juns 2011, performance aganst targets resulted in
a bonus payment of 83% and 62% of salary for Hennk Bang and
James Omondroyd respectively (adjusting for salary sacnficed for
addtional personal pension contnbutions} Hennk Bang elected
to receve £50,000 of bonus as an additional employer pension
contnbution to his personal pension plan

Dunng the year a new Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP7)

was tntroduced The LTIP i1s designed to incentmse senior
management to deliver an increasing performance of the
Company’s ordinary share price up to 55 pence from the date

of grant untl 1 January 2017 The Remuneration Committee
appointed Kepler Associates (independent adwvisers on executive
remuneration) and TaylorWessing {legal adwsers) to prowde advice
on designing the LTIP Major shareholders were fully consulted
before the LTIP was adopted by the Board in June 2011

The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors 1s determined
by the Board within the limits set by the Company's Articles of
Assoctation

The senice contracts and letters of appointment of the Directors
include the following terms

Date of

appointment Notice period
Executive Directors
Hennk Bang 13 February 2004 12 months
James Ommondroyd 30 July 2010 12 menths
Non-Executive Directors
Roger Alisop 28 August 1987 6 months
Mark Brooks 30 July 2010 1 month
Michael Jackson 23 March 2009 1 month
Michael Neville 30 July 2010 12 months
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The table below sets out the detaled emocluments of each Director who served dunng the year

Salary Bengfits 2011 2010
and foes in kind Bonus Total Total
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Executive Directors

Hennk Bang 207 16 123 346 187
Jameas Ormondroyd 124 14 90 228 -

Non-Executive Directors
Roger Allsop 24 - - 24 22
Mark Brooks 4 - - 49 —
Michael Jackson 50 - - 50 54
Michael Nevilla 22 — - 22 -
431 30 213 674 263

In addition to the payments included i the table above Mark Brooks entered into a fixed term employment contract with Datadialogs
Limited (a subsidiary undertaking) as mtenm Managing Director between 30 July 2010 to 31 March 2011 and receved emoluments of

£65,000 for the penod

The table below sets out the contnbutions by the Company to Directors’ personal pension schemes dunng the year

2011 2010
£'000 £°000
Executive Directors
Hennk Bang 66 13
James Ormondroyd 23 —
B89 13
The table below sets out share options granted to Directors
Earliest Nurnber at Number at
axercise Exercige 1 July Granted Lapsed 30 June
Date of grant_ date  Expry date pnce {pence) 2010 In year In ysar 2011
Roger Allscp
150202 150204 140212 200 100,000 - - 100,000
19 01 030 190103 180113 100 100,000 - — 100,000
200,000 — - 200,000
Hennk Bang
260204 260204 250214 250 400,000 - 400,000 -
02 06 09% 020809 300115 50 3,370,000 - - 3,370,000
Q7 06 11® 07 06 11 06 06 21 50 — 7,000,000 — 1,000,000
3,770,000 7,000,000 400,000 10,370,000
Michael Jackson
07 06 119 070611 06 06 21 50 — 1,000,000 — 1,000,000
James Omondroyd
07 06 11# 070811 06 06 21 50 - 4,200,000 — 4,200,000
3,970,000 12,200,000 400,000 15,770,000

@ Optons are condibonal on certan vesting crtena Including performance of the Company's ordinary shara prce reaching 30 pence or a sale of the business Once vested

up o 1009% of the options awardad may be exercmsad

@ Optons ae conditonal on certan vesting cntena including performanca of the Comparny’s ordinary share price up to 40 pence from the date of grant or an annual Group
profit target of up to £2 1 million untl 30 Septermber 2014, and, the option holder being 1N employment at the date the opton 15 exertsed  Once vested up to 100% of the

options awarded may be exeraised The opbons shall not be exercisable later than 48 hours after the pubication of the June 2014 financial staternents

R Optons ara conditonat on certain vestng cmena ndluding peﬂonnameo{meComparw‘sordmwstlarepdceuptoﬁspemefrmmedatao{gramUnm1Janua;y
2017, and the ophon holder being in empioyment at the date the option 19 exercised Once vested up to 100% of the optiona awarded may be exarcised
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Report of the Directors continued

The closing mid-market pnes of the Company’s shares at 30 June
2011 was 17 pence Dunng the financial year the share price
reached a hugh of 21 pence and a low of 9 pence

Drirectors’ indemnity and insurance

The Group maintained insurance cover dunng the year for its
Drrsctors and Officers and those of subsidiary companies under
a Directors’ and Officers’ habilty insurance policy against liabilties
which may be incurred by them while camying out therr duties

On 19 September 2011, the Group agreed to Indemnify James
Ormondroyd to the extent permitted by law in respect of all
habilites to third parties ansing out of, or In connection with, the
execution of his powers, duties and responsibilites as a Director
of Netcall Telecom, Inc This iIndemnity 1s a Qualfying Third Party
Indemnity Prowvision as defined in Section 234 of the Companies
Act 2006 (the ‘Act’} and a copy Is avallable for Inspection at the
registered office of the Company dunng business hours on any
weekday except public holidays

Corporate governance

The Company'’s statement on corporate governance can be found
in the corporate governance report on pages 13 to 14 of this
annual report

Employees

The Group encourages employee involvement in the business

at all lavels with the human caprtal of Netcall being the key to
continuing success All employses are remunerated according to
results wherever possible and participate in benefit schemes

Every effort 1s made to keep all staff informed and involved in the
operations and progress of the Group Thig 1 achieved through
the use of electronic communications, the Group’s Intranet,
employee representatives meetings and staff bnefings

Netcall has always actively encouraged a diverse workforce and
has reviewed Its processes in ight of recent legislative changes
Thus year the particular focus has heen on age following the
abolition of the default retirement age The Company has always
placed high importance on retaining its older workers with 17% of
our workforce aged over 50 and a number of staff now working
beyond the former default retrerment age The Company has
proactively amended its benefit policies to include older workers,
previously excluded after the age of 85 We oifer flexible working
to all staff and have found that a number of older workers have
chosen 1o reduce therr working hours rather than opt to take
retirement Retaning the key skills and knowledge of older
workers and utibsing them to coach less expenenced staff is vital
to the success of the future of the Company

The Group continues to adopt an equai opportunities policy under
which traming and career development opportunities are available
10 all employees regardless of gender, relgion, race, disability

or sexual onentation Far consideration 1s given to applications
for employment from disabled people and the retention and
retraining, where practicable, of employees who become disabled
15 encouraged

Policy and practise on payment of creditors

The Group recogrises the importance of good relationships with
its supphers and subcontractors Although the Group does not
follow any particular code or standard on payment practice, its
established payment policy 1s to agree payment terms in advance
of any commitment being entered iInto and to seek to abide by
these agreed terms provided that the supplier has also complied
with them Trade creditor days for the Company for the year wers
58 days (2010 31 days)

Financial instruments

Financial instruments, ncluding financial nsk management
objectives and policies for hedging, exposure to market nsk, credit
nsk and hquidity nsk are disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statemeants

Share capital

Details of the Issued share capital, together with details of the
moverment in the Company's 1ssued share capital dunng the year
are shown in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no
nght 1o fixed income Each share cames the nght to one vote at
general meetings of the Company At the date of this report the
Company consisted of 122,247,826 1ssued and fully paid ordinary
shares with a normmal value of 5p per share, quoted on the AIM of
the London Stock Exchange

There are no specrfic restnctions on the size of holding nor on
the transter of shares which are both governed by the general
provisions of the Articles of Assaciation and prevailing legislation
The Directors are not aware of any agreements between holders
of the Company’s shares that may result in restnctions on the
transfer of securnties or voting nghts No person has any special
nghts of control over the Company's share captal and all issued
shares are fully paid

Details of employee share schemes are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statemerts i
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The Company was authonsed at s last Annual General Meeting
to make market purchases of up to 12,224,782 of its ordinary
shares provided that the rmurimum pnce per share that may be
paid for any such shares ts £0 05 pence, and, the maxmum pnce
that may be pad for any such shares s not more than the higher
of (i an amount equal to 120% of the average market value for

an ordinary share, as derved from the London Stock Exchange
Business List, for the five business days prior to the day on which
the purchase is made, or {ii) that stipulated by Article 5(1) of the
Buy-back and Stabilisation Regulation 2003 This authority expires
at the earltest on the close of the next Annual General Mesting or
17 February 2012 No purchases have been rmade as at the date
of this report under this authorty

Auditor

Grant Thornton UK LLP, who were re-appointed on 18 November
2010, have expressed therr willingness to continue n office as
auditors and a resolution to appoint them and authonss the
Directors to determine their remuneration for the ensuing vear will
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Masting

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting wll be held at TaylorWessing LLP,

5 New Street Square, London, EC4A 3TW on 24 Novermnber 2011
at 10 30 am Detals and an explanation of the resolutions to be
proposed are contained in the Notice of Annual General Meeting
sent to sharsholders with the annual report

By order of the Board

S

James Ormondroyd
Director
23 September 2011
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Directors’ Report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law they are
required to prepare Group financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS'} as adopted
by the European Urion (‘EU") and have elected to prepare the
Parent Cornpany financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practise (UK GAAP)
Under Company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and farr
view of the state of affairs and profit or loss of the Company and
Group for that penod In prepanng these financial statements, the
Drrectors are required to

e select sutable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

e make judgments and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

e state whether applicable IFRS as adopted by the EU, and
appiicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards have been
followed for the Group and Parent Company respectively,
subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements, and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it 1s INappropnate to presume that the Company will
continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 They are also rasponsible for safeguarding the assets

of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other iregulanties

In so far as each of the Directors 1s aware

o thare s no relevant audt information of which the Company's
audritors are unaware, and

o the Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have
taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audr
nformation and 1o establish that the auditors are aware of that
information

The Directors are responsible for the mairtenance and integnty of
the corporate and financial information included on the Company’s
website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other junsdictions
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Corporate Governance Statement

Introduction

The Board recogrises the pnnciples of good corporate
governance set ocut in the Corporate Governance Code published
by the Financial Reporting Council in June 2010 ('the Code’) and
afthough as the Company 1s quoted on AIM it 1s not required to
comply with the Code 1t does so as far as 1t feels 1s practical and
appropnate for a Company of its size

This statement, together with the statement of Directors’
responsibilties, Chaiman's and Chief Executive’s revisw and the
Directors’ report, indicates how the Company has appled the
prnciples of the Code

Board responsibilities

The Board's principal responsibilities are to deliver shareholder
value, maintain reliable systems of control and provide the overall
wision and leadership for the Company {t determines corporate
strategy, reviews the Group's operating and financial performance
to ensure it s affectvely controlled, and 1s the pnmary decision-
maker for all matters considered to be significant to the Group as
& whole

There 1s an agreed formal schedule of matters reserved for
approval by the Board including the approval of acguisitions,
budgets, commercial strategy, major caprtal expenditure, treasury
policy, corpeorate governance, nsk control and the appotntment of
new Directors

Board composition and balance

The Board, chared by Michael Jackson, compnses two Executive
Drrectors and four Non-Executive Directors  Collectively, the Directors
have a wide range of rlevant business and financial expenence and
knowledge which 1s vital to the success of the Group

The Charman and Chief Executive have clearty defined and
distinct roles The Charrman I1s responsible for corporate
govarnance, shareholder commurications and the efficient
operation of the Board The Chief Executive 1s responsible for the
day-to-day operation of the Group and leads the communication
programme with analysts and potential investors

Bicgraphical details of the Directors can be found on page 6

The Directors forming the Remuneration and Audit Committees
are not Independent, as defined by the Code because Roger
Allsop has served as a Diractor for 24 years, Michael Newille
became a Director of the Company following the acquisition of
Telephonstics Plc of which Company he was a Director, and
Michael Jackson was appotnted a Director and Charrman without
the intervention of a Nomination Committes Each of these
Drrectors holds shares in the Company and Roger Alisop and
Michael Newville are Directors of other comparues in the Group

Board process

The Board cames out its dutes with the assistance of the Beard
committeses The Board meets regularty dunng the year and additional
meetings are arranged as necessary for spectfic purposes Full and
timealy infarmation 1s providad 1o the Board to enable it to functon
effectively and to allow Directors to discharge therr responsibihes

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Cornpany Secretary, who ensures that the Board meets formally
&t least eleven times per year, receves appropnate and timely
information for decision making, that Board procedures are
followed and that statutory and regulatory requirements are met
Any Director, in order to fulfil thair duties, may take independent
professional adwvice at the Company’s expense

The table below shows the number of monthly meetings indvidual
Diractors could have attended during the year (taking account

of eligibility, appointment and retirement dates) and therr actual
attendance

Number of

Number of meetings

meehngs attended

Roger Allsop 11 11
Henrk Bang 13 11
Mark Brooks 10 a
Michael Jackson 11 11
Michael Newville 10 10
James Ormondroyd 10 10

The Board has procedures in place to deal with potential confiicts
of interest and confirms that the procedures have operated
effectively dunng the year under review

The Board does not formally evaluate the perforrmance of the
Board, its committees and its mdmdual Dirsctors but evaluates
the effectiveness of the Board as a whole by a policy of managing
the achievernent of business objectives and monitors the
sffectiveness thereof pnncipally by the regular review of financial
information and the work of the Audit Committes

Internal control and risk management

The Dwectors are responsible for nsk assessment and the systems
of internal control Although no systerm of intermal control can
prowde absolute assurance aganst matenal misstatement or loss,
the Group's systems are designed to provide the Directors with
reasonable assurance that problems are identfied on a tmely
basis and dealt with appropnately

Company management The Board has put in place a system

of internal controls, set within 2 dlearly defined organisationat
structure with well understood ines of responsibility, delegation
of authonty, accountability, policies and procedures Managers
assume responstbility for running day-to-day operational actvities
with performance regularty revewad and employees are required
to follow procedures and policies appropnate to ther position
within the business
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Corporate Governance Statement continued

Business nsks The Board is responsible for identrifying, evaluating
and managing all major business nsks facing the Group To
facitate the assessment of nsks, monthly reports on non-financial
matters are received by the Board covenng such matters as sales
performance, project progress and human resource ISsues

Financial management A business plan and an annual operating
budget are prapared by management and are reviewed and
approved by the Board pnor to commencement of each financial
year Monthly accounts companng current year performancs with
budget together with key performance metncs are receved and
discussed by the Board The Group has In place documented
authortty levels for approving purchase orders, invoices and all
bank transactions

Quality management The Group Is focused on mesting the
highest levels of customer satisfaction Qualty procedures for the
development of products, sernvices and rmamntenance support are
documented and reviewed frequenily

Internal audit The Directors do not currently beheve that an
additional separate internal audit function is appropnate for the
s1ze and complexity of the Group but will continue to penodically
review the position The Group 1s 1ISOS001 accredited which has
been independently audited

Election and re-election of Directors

Drrectors are intially appointed unti the following Annual General
Meeting when, under the Company’s Articles of Association, It 1s
required that they be elected by shareholders The Company’s
Articles of Association require that Directors retire and stand for
re-election at least once every three years

Directors’ indemnity and insurance

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Company has
provided mdemnhes to the Direciors {to the extent permitted by

the Comparnies Act 2008) In respect of labilies incurred as a result
of therr office The Company has taken out an insurance policy In
respect of those labites for which Drectors may not be indemnified
Netther the indernnity nor insurance provides cover n the event that
the Director 1s proved to have acted dishorestly or fraudulently

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists the Board to discharge s
responsibilties for ensunng the integrity of the financial nformation
reported to shareholders, maeting with and recommending the
appointment and resignation of the Company's auditor and
ensunng that non-audit services do not iImpact on the objectmty
and indepandence of the Company’s auditor The members of the
Audit Committee consider that they have the requistte skills and
expenencs to fulfil the responsibiiies of the Audt Committee The
Audit Committee 1s chaired by Michael Newille and mests on at
least two occasions each year The Group's auditors have direct
access to the Audt Committee at any time to raise any matters of
concern or for discussion

The table below shows the number of meetngs ndmdual
Directors could have attended during the year (taking account
of eligibility, appointment and retirement dates) and ther actual
attendance

Number of

Number of mestings

meetings attended

Roger Allsop 2 1
Michael Jackson 2 2
Michael Neville 2 2

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee's pnncipal function is to review the
performance of the Executive Directors, recommend the setting of
their remuneration and for considenng the grant of share ophions
to Directors and employees The Committee 1s chared by Roger
Allsop and meets not less than four tmes a year Details of the
Directors’ remuneration can be found on page 8 The table below
shows the number of meetings indvidual Dirsctors could have
attended during the year {takung account of eligibility, appointment
and retirement) and ther actual attendance

Number of

Number of meetings

meetings attended

Roger Allsop 13 13
Michael Jackson 13 12
Michae! Neville 13 12

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee compnses the Chairman and two
Nen-Executive Directors 1t ts chared by Michael Jackson

The principal functions are 1o review the structure, size and
composttion of the Board, consider succession and identify and
nominate Board candidates The nomination committee did not
meet dunng the year

Relations with shareholders

The Board attaches great importance to mantaining good
relationships with its institutional sharsholders Following the
announcement of the half-year and year-end results, a senes

of formal meetings with institutional shareholders 1s undertaken
which allows the Executve Directors to form relationships with the
investors and for the shareholders to raise any concems

The Company’s brokers and financial PR advisers provide
feedback from nvestor and analyst meetings which are prasented
1o the Board The Annual General Mesting also provides

an opportunity for the Board to communicate directly with
shareholders The Company mantains a webstte which contains
information on the Group, regulatory announcements and financial
statements www netcall com
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Netcall plc

We have audited the financial statements of Netcall plc for the
year ended 30 June 2011 which compnse the conschdated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
incomes, consolidated balance sheet and Parent Company
balance sheset, the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
the consolidated statement of cash flows and related notes

The financial reporting framework that has besn applied n the
preparation of the Group financial statements 1s applicable

law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

as adopted by the European Union The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent
Company financial statements 1s applcable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (UK GAAP)

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body,
In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparies Act
2006 Our audtt work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Company’s members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor's repert and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent perrritted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Cormpany's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explaned more fully in the Staternent of Directors’
responsibiiities on page 12, the Directors are responstble for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audtt and
express an opinon on the financial statements N accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's (APB's) Ethucal Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A descnption of the scope of an audt of financial statements 1s
provided on the APB's websrte at www frc org uk/apb/scope/
private cfm

Opinion on financial statements
N our cpmicn

e the financial statements gve a true and far view of the state of
the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affars as at 30 June
2011 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

e the Group financial statements have been properly preparsd in
accordance with I[FRS as adopted by the European Urnion,

o the Parent Company financial statements have been property
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practics, and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the

Companies Act 2006

In our opinton the information given i the Directors’ report for the
financial year for which the financial statements ars prepared 1s
consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing 1o report in respect of the following matters
where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to vou if, In
our opInion

e adsquate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us, or

o the parent Company financial statements are not In agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

o certan disclosures of Directors’ rermuneration specified by law
are not made, or

¢ we have not recaved all the information and explanations we
require for our audrt

Qrant Thomrem, UK LR

Alison Seekings

Senior Statutory Auditor

For and on behalf of Grant Thomton UK LLP

Statutory Audttor, Chartered Accountants

Cambndge

23 September 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement ror me yser snded 30 June 2011

2011 2010
Notes £000 £000
Revenue 5 13,616 4,131
Cost of sales 18 {1,785) (360)
Gross profit 11,831 3,771
Adminstrative expenses 18 (11,308) (4,008)
Other gains/{losses) — net 17 18 {11)
Adjusted EBITDA 2,746 1,073
Acquisition costs i8 (38) (916)
Reorganisation costs 18 (910) -
Share-based payments 20 (105) {205)
Deprectation 6 {128) (30}
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 7 (897) (150}
Amortisation of other intangible assets 7 (120 (20}
Operating profit/(loss) 541 (248)
Finance Income 22 13 13
Finance costs 22 {8) —
Finance costs — net 5 13
Profit/{loss) before tax 546 {235)
Tax 23 141 261
Profit for the period 687 26
Eamings per share — pence
Basic 24 0.58 004
Basic — adjusted 24 1.57 117
Diluted 24 0.58 004
Diluted — adjusted 24 1.55 115

Al achvities of the Group in the current and prior perods are classed as continuing  All of the profit for the penod 1s attnbutable to the shareholders of

Natcall plc

The notes on pages 20 1o 42 form part of these financial statements

Statement of Comprehensive INCOME ror the year ended 30 June 2011

2011 2010

£'000 2000

Prufit for the year 687 26
Total comprehensive Income for the year 687 26

All of the comprehensive Income for the year s attributable to the shareholders of Netcall pic
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as « 30.une 2011

2011 2010

Notes £'000 £°000
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 162 82
Intangible assets 11,120 2,883
Defarred income tax asset 15 897 810
Total non-current assets 12,178 3,775
Current assets
Inventones 9 243 3
Trade and other receivables 10 3,949 1,184
Cash and cash equivalents 11 5,885 2,449
Total current assets 10,077 3,644
Total assets 22,256 7,419
Equity and liabilities
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capttal 12 6,112 3,210
Shars premium 12 3,010 2
Merger reserve 2,509 220
Caprtal reserve 188 188
Employee share schemes reserve K<) 2864
Retained earnings 1,861 1,136
Total equity 14,011 5,020
Liabilities
Non-current liabilties
Deferred income tax llabilities i5 1,027 130
Provisions 18 25 —
Total non-current liabilities 1,052 130
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 6,945 2,269
Currant Income tax liabities 78 —
Provisions 16 170 -
Total! current liabilities 7,183 2,269
Total liabilities 8,245 —
Total equity and liabilities 22,258 7.419

The notes on pages 20 to 42 form part of these financial statements

These financial statements on pages 16 to 42 were approved and authonsed for 1ssue by the Board of Directors on 23 Septermber 2011 and were

signed on its behalf by

Ja%w "

Director

Netcall plc
Regstered no 1812912
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity =« 20 sunes 2011

Employee
share
Share Share Merger Capital schame Retalned
capital premium reserve reserve reserve eamnings Total
£°000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 .July 2009 3,130 2 - 188 227 942 4,489
lssue of ordinary shares i relation to
business combination 80 - 220 - - — 300
Increass in equity reserve n relation {0
options issued — - - - 206 - 205
Reclassdication following exercise and
cancellation of cptions - - - — (168} 168 —
Transactions with owners 80 - 220 - a7 168 505
Profit and total comprehensiva income
for the year — - — — - 26 26
Batance at 30 June 2010 3,210 2 220 188 264 1,136 5,020
Batance at 1 July 2010 3,210 2 220 188 264 1,136 5,020
Proceeds from share issus 1,118 2,979 - - - - 4,097
Issue of ordnary shares in relation to
busingss combination 1,784 29 2,289 - - — 4,102
Increase in equry reserve in relation
1o options 1ssued - - - - 105 — 105
Reclassfication following exercise and
cancellanon of options — — — — {38) 38 —
Transactions with owners 2,802 3,008 2,289 - 67 38 8,304
Profit and total comprehensive ncoms
for the year — - — — — 687 687
Balance at 30 June 2011 8,112 3,010 2,509 188 an 1,861 14,011

The notes on pages 20 to 42 form part of these financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash FIOWS tor the year ended 30 sune 2014

2011 2010
Notes £'000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before income tax 546 (235)
Adjustments for
Depreciation 128 30
Amortisation 1,024 170
Share-based payments 105 206
MNet finance income 8 (13}
Changes in working caprtal {sxcluding the effects of acquistions)
inventones 147 @)
Trade and other recenvables (8T 46
Trade and other payables (343) 168
Cash generated from operations 725 389
Analysed as
Cash generated from/{used N} operations before acquisition and recrganisation payments 2,197 757
Acquisttion costs paid 18 {806) (388)
Reorganisation costs paid 18 (668) -
Interast pad (8) -
Incoms tax paid (83) —
Net cash generated from operating activities 634 369
Cash flows from Investing activities
Acquistiion of subsidiary, net of cash acquired (1,056) {2,002)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (30} (49)
Devalopment expenditurs (152) -
Purchase of other intangible assets 70) {45)
Interest received 13 13
Net cash used in Investing activities (1,295) (2,083)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from 1ssus of ordinary shares 4,097 —
Net cash generated from financing activitiea 4,087 —
Net Increase/{decreasa) in cash and cash equivalents 3,436 {1,714)
Cash and cash equialents at beginning of the penod 2,449 4,163
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 5,885 2,449

The notes on pages 20 to 42 form part of these financal staterments
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General information

Neteall plc {the 'Company’) and its subsidiaries (together, the
‘Group’} design, develop and markst communications and workforce
management softwara and services to the haalthcare, public and
private sectors

The Company 1s a public imited company which 1s quoted on AIM
(a market of the London Stock Exchange) and 1s incorporated and
dormiciled in the UK The Company's registered address Is 3rd Floor,
Hamelton House, 111 Marowss, Hemel Hempstead, HP1 188 and
the Company’s regsstered number 1s 1812912

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied In the preparation of these
consolidated financial staterments are set out below These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presentad, unless
otherwise stated

{a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Netcall pic have been
prapared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ('IFRS") as adoptad by the European Union ('EL), IFRIC
Interpretations and the Compares Act 2006 applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the histonical ¢ost convention, as modifisd by
the revatuation of available-for-sale financial assets

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates it also
requires management 1o exercise it$ judgesment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies The areas invohing a higher
degree of udgement or complexaty, or areas where assumphons and
estimates ara signfficant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4

(b) Going concern

As a result of the funding actvties undartaken and an incraased level
of cash generated from operating actvities the Group has improved
its liguidity position and remains debt-free, desprte significant
expenditure on acquisitions and associated restructunng in the last
year

The Group’s forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably
possible changes in trading performance, show that the Group
should be abla to operate within the level of #s current financing

After making enguines, the Diectors have a reasonable expectation
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in gperational
existance for the foresesable future The Group therefore continuas to
adopt the going concarn basis n prepanng its conselidated financial
statements

{c) Changes in accounting policies

There are no new or amended standards that have heen adopted
by the Group in the year which have had a matenal impact on the
consolidated financial staterments

The foliowing standards, amendments and interpretations have been
published and are mandatory for the Group's accounting penods
beginming on or after 1 July 2011 or later periods, but the Group has
not presently adopted them

¢ |FRS3 Finangial Instruments (sffective 1 January 2013)

® IFRS10 Consoclidated Finangal Statements (effactive
1 January 2013)

o [FRS11 Jont Arangements (effective 1 January 2013)

® |IFRS12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entries (effective
1 January 2013)

¢ |FRS13 Far Value Measursment (sffective 1 January 2013}

¢ |AS24 [Revised 2009) Relatad Party Disclosures {effective
1 January 2011)

® IAS27 (Rewised), Separate Financial Statements {effectiva
1 January 2013)

e |AS28 (Rewsed), Investments in Associates and Jomt Ventures
(affectve 1 January 2013}

¢ Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement —
Amendments to IFRIC14 (efiectve 1 January 2011)

¢ Improverments to IFRS ssusd May 2010 {note some changes
ar sffective 1 July 2010, though not yet EU-adopted, others
gffective 1 January 2011)

e Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets — Amendments 10
IFRS7 {sffactve 1 July 2011)

e Deferred Tax Recovery of Undertying Assets — Amendmants to
14512 Income Taxes (effectve 1 January 2012)

Based on ts current business and accounting policies, the Group
does not expect thess new standards, amendments or Interpretations
to have a matenal impact on the consolidated financial statements
when they become effactive
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued
{d) Consolidation

Subsidianes ars all entites over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies genarally accompanying
a shareholding of more than oné half of the voting nghts The
existence and effect of potential voting nghts that are currently
exarcisable or convartible are considersd when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity Subsichanes are fully consolidated
from the dats on which control s transferred to the Group They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases

The Group uses the acquisiion method of accounting to account

for business combinations {except Netcall UK LUmited — formerty
Netcall Telecomn Lirnited, see explanation below) The consideration
transferrad for the acquisttion of a subsidiary 1s the fair values of the
assets transferred, the llabities incurred and the equity Interests
1ssued by the Group The consideration transferred inckides the far
value of any asset or labiity resutting from a contingent constderation
arrangement Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred
Identfiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent Labilties
assumed in a business combination are measured ntally at their fair
values at the acquisition date On an acquistion-by-acquisiton basis,
the Group recogmises any non-controling interest in the acquires
edther at far value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amournt of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree, and, the acqusiion-date far value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the Group's share of the Identfiable net assets acquired 1s recorded
as goodwill If this 1s less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
1s recognised directly in profit or loss (note 2(h))

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gams on
transactions between Group Comparies are elminated Unrealised
losses are also eliminated Accounting policies of subsidianes have
been changed where necessary 1o ansure consigtency with the
policies adopted by the Group

Whare a Group Company has acquired an investment in a subsidiary
undertaking and elected under section 612 of the Companies

Act 2006 to apply merger relief, the investment in the subsidiary
undertaking 1s recorded In the Group Company's balance sheet at the
nominal amount of the shares issued On consoldation the difference
between the nominal value and far value of the shares issued is
credited to the merger reserve

The Group elected not to apply IFRS3 Business Combinations
retrospectvely to business combinations pnor to date of transtion to
IFRS from UK GAAP Accordingly the classfication of the combination
remains unchanged from that used under UK GAAP Assats and
llabiities are mcognised at date of transition, 1 July 2008, if they would
be recognised under IFRS, and are measured using tharr UK GAAP
camying amount iImmediately post-acquiston as deemed cost under
IFRS, uniess IFRS requires far value measurement When Metcall ple
acquired Netcall UK Limited in 1996, crdinary shares were 1ssued to
form the consideration The UK GAAP merger accounting criena wera
met and 50 a merger resarve was recognised Due to the elaction not
to apply IFRS3 Business Combinations pnor to the date of transtion,
this merger reserve has remanad unchanged on transition to IFRS

(e) Segment reporting

Operating sagments are reported In a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker
The chief operating decision-maker, who 1s responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been rdentified as the Board of Directors

{f) Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entries are measured using the currency of the pnmary economic
environment In which the entity operates (‘the functignal currency”)
The consolidated financial statements ars presented In sterling (€},
which is the Company's functional and the Group's presentation
currency

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevaiing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where tems are remeasured Foreign
exchange gains and lossss resutting from the settiement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and babiltes denominated tn foreign currencies are
recognised in the profit or loss

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the income statement
within ‘finance income or cost' All other forergn exchange gans and
losses are presented in the InCome statement within ‘other gains/
(losses) — net'

{g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment Is stated at histoncal cost, net of
dspreciation and any provision for imparment  Histoncal cost
includes expendrture that 1s directly attnbutable to the acquisition of
the items
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's camyng amount or
recogrised as a separate asset, as appropnate, only whan it is
probable that future economic bensfits associated with the tem waill
flow to the Group and the cost of the tem can be measured reliably
The camying amount of the replaced part 1s derecognised All other
repairs and maintenance are ¢harged to profit or loss in the financial
penod in which they are incurred

Depreciation 15 calculated using the straght-line method to allocate
theur cost less therr residual values over ther estimated useful Ives,
as follows

e Computer equipment 3-7 years
&  Fumnrturs, fittngs and equipment 3-7 years

The assets’ residual values and usaful Ives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropnate, at the end of each reporting penod

An asset's carrying amount Is wnitten down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s camying amount s greater than its
astimated racoverable amount (note 2(()

Gain and losses on disposal of an asset s determined by companng
the proceeds with the cammying amount and are recognised within
‘Other gaing/{losses) — net’ In tha Income statement

{h) Intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired In a business combination are recognised
at far value at the acquisition date and armortised over ther expected
useful economic life using the straight-ine method The expected
useful economic Iife of stangible assets 1s assessed for each
acquistion as it ansas and is as follows

& Brand names 18 months
o Technology assets 4-15 years
e  Customer confracts and relationships 6-10 years

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the far value of the consideration
transfarrad on acquisibon over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the net identrfiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of

the acquistion Goodwallis tested annually for mpairmant and camed
at cost less accumulatad imparment losses Impamment losses on
goodwill are not reversed  Gams and losses on the disposal of an enuty
inclide the camying amourtt of goodwill relating to the entrty sold

Goodwill wrtten off to reserves pnor to date of transition to IFRS
remains in reserves Thers 1S ne renstatement of goodwall that was
amortised pnor to transion 10 IFRS Goodwill previously wtten off to
resarves 18 not written back to profit or loss on subseguent disposal

Trademarks and licences

Separately acqured trademarks and licences are shown at histoncal
cost Trademnarks and licences have a finte useful Ife and are camed
at cost less accumulated amortisation  Amortisation 1s calculated
using the straight-ine methcod to allocats the cost of trademarks and
licences over their sstmated usefut Iives of 3 to 10 years

Internally generated software development costs

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes
are recogrused as an expense as ncumred Development costs that
are directly attnbutable to the design and testing of wdemiable and
uniqus software products controlled by the Group are recognised as
intangible assets when the folowng cntena are met

¢ 1t 15technically feasible to complets the software product so that
it will be available for use,

& management ntends to complste the software product and use
or sell it,

e thers s an abiity to uss or sell the software product,

& 1t can be demonstrated how the software product will generats
probable future economic benefits,

¢ adequate technical, financiel and other resources to complete
the development and to use or sell the software product are
avalable, and

e the expendture attnbutable to the software product dunng rs
development can be reliably measured

Directly aftnbutable costs that ars caprtalised as part of the software
product ncluda the software development employee costs and an
appropnate portion of relevant overhaads

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are
amortised over ther estmated useful lives, which does not exceed
four years
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued
{i} tmpairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite ussful Ife, for example goodwil, are

not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment
Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the canying amount may not be recoverabla An imparment loss
15 recognised for the amount by which the asset's carmying amount
exceeds its recovarable amount The recoverable amount 1s the
higher of an asset's far value less costs to sell and value n use For
the pumoses of assessing Impament, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identfiable cash flows
(cash-generating units) Non-financial assets other than goodwill

that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
Impairment at each reporting date

() Financial assets

The Group classfies its financial assets n the following categones
loans and receivables and avallable-for-sale The classification
dapends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at
intial recognition

Loans and recervables are non-dervatve financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
They are included in current assets, except for maturies greater than
12 months after the end of the reporting period which are classified
as non-current assets The Group's loans and recevables comprse
‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ In the
balance sheet (notes 10 and 11)

Avalable-for-sale financial assets are non-denvatives that are ether
designatad in this category or not classified as loans and recevables
They are inciuded in noR-cumant assets uniess the INvestment matures
or management intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the end of
the reporting penod

Investments are inttially recognised at far value plus transaction costs
Financial assets are deracogrised when the nghts to receve cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantally all nsks and rewards

of ownership on intsal recognrtion, financial assets are measured

at far value  Avastable-for-sale financial assats are subsaquentty
camed at farr value, movements in far value are recogrised in other
cormprehensive Income Loans and recevables are subsequently
camad at amortised cost using the effective Interest method

The Group assesses at sach balance sheet date whether there 1s
objective evidencs (such as sgnificant financial difficutties on the part
of the counterparty or default or significant delay in payment) that a
financial asset or group of financial assets are impared

The amourit of the foss is measured for loans and recenvables as
the difference between the asset’s camying amount and the present
value of esimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not bean incurmed) discounted at the financial asset's
onginal effective iInterest rate, and for equity Investments classified
as avalabls-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decling in the far
value of the secunty below its cost 1s also evidence that the assets
are impaired The carmying amount of the asset 18 reduced and the
amount of the loss I1s recognised In profit or loss

If, In & subsaquent penod, the amount of the Impaiment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an

avent occumng after the impairment was recognised (such as

an improvement In the debtor's crednt rating), the reversal of the
previously racognised imparrment loss ts recognised in profit or loss

(k) Financtal [iabilities

Financial habilties are obiigations to pay cash or other financiat
assets and are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Instrument

Financial liabilties are recorded inmally at far vatue and subsequently
at amortised cost using the effactive interest method, with interest-
related charges recognised as an expense in finance cost in the
Income statemnent A financial llability 1s derecognised only when the
oblgation 1s extinguished

{1} Inventories

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
Costs are assigned using the first in, first out method The cost of
finished goods and work-in-progress compnses computar hardware
and softwars, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling pncas in the
ordmary course of business, less applicable vanabla saling expenses

{m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, and other short-deposits with a maturtty of three
months or less




24

Netcall plc Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 30 June 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Summary of significant accounting policies continued
(n) Equity
Equnty compnses the following

@  Share caprtal which represents the nominal value of equity
shares,

@  Share premium which represants the excess over nomunal value
of the farr value of consideration receved for equity sharas, net
of expenses of the share 1ssue,

&  Marger resarve which represants the premium ansing on the
fair values ascnbed to shares 1ssusd In the course of business
combinations where over 90% of the 1ssued share caprtal of the
acquires Is acquired by the parent,

e Capital reserva which represents amounts set aside following a
capital reduction scheme,

e Employee share schemes reserve which represents equity-
settled share-based empioyes remuneration until such share
options are exercised, and

e Profit and loss account which epresents curnulative net gains
and losses recognised In the consolidated income statement

{0} Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the penod compnses curment and deferred tax
Tax 1s reeogmised In the Income statement, excapt to the extent
that it relates to tems recogrised In other comprehensive INCOMe
or directly n equity In this case, the tax s also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly In equity, respectively

The current income tax charge 1s calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance shest date

In the countries whare the Company and ts subsidianes opsrate

and generate taxable ncome Management penodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to stuations N which
apphcable tax regulation 1s subject to interpretation ft establishes
provisicns where appropnate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paxd to the tax authonties

Deterred income tax s recognised, using the liabiity method, on
temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and
labilfies and thew camying amounts n the consolidated financial
statements However, deferred tax katilites are not recognised if
they anse from the intial recogniion of goodwill, deferred Income tax
is not accountad for i it anses from inttial recognition of an asset or
liability i a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
orloss Deferred incoma tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantally enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred Income
tax asset 1s realised or the deferred income tax liabilty 1s settled

Defarred iIncome tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probabie that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utised

{p) Employee benefits — pensions

Contnbutions to the Group's defined contnbution psnsion schems
and employae’s parsonal pension plans are charged to the Income
statement as employee benefit expenses when they are due The
Group has no further paymant obligation once the contnbutions have
been pad

{q) Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of employee share schemes uncler
which it makes equity-settied share-based paymants to certain
employees The far valus of employes servces recenved in exchange
for the grant of the options 18 recognised as an expense The totat
amount 1o be expensed is determined by reference to the far value
of the options granted mcluding any market performance conditions
and any non-vesting conditions but excluding the impact of any
service and non-market performance vesting conditions (for example
profitability targets and remaining an employee of the Group for a
specffied period)

Non-market condtions are included n assumptions about the
number of opticns that are expected to vest The total expense

18 recaognised over the vesting penod, which 1s the panod over

whuch all of the specffied vesting conditions are satisfied At each
balance sheet date, the Group revises its estmates of the number
of options that are expected to vast based on the non-market
vesting condittons It recognises the mpact of the revision to ongingl
astimates, f any, In profit or loss, with a correspending adjustment to
equity

In accordance with the exemptions availlable under IFRS1, IFRS2 has
been applied to all grants of squty Instruments after 7 November
2002 that were unvested as at 1 July 2006

The liability for social secunty costs ansing In relation to the awards Is
measured at each reporting data based upon the share prce at the
reporting date and the elapssd portion of the relavant vesting penads
to the extent that it 1s considered that a latylity will anse

{r) Provisions

Provisions for vacant property obligations and associated costs
and leasehold dilapidations ars recogrised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obiigation as a result of past events, t
1$ probable that an outflow of resourcas will be required to settls the
obligation, and the amount has been rehably estimated
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued
Provisions are measuraed at the present value of the expendtures
expectad to be required 1o sattle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the nsks specific to the obligation The increase in the provision
due to passage of tme 1S racognised as Intersst expense

{s) Revenue

Revenus compnsas the far value of the considaration receved or
recevable for the sale of goods and services In the ordinary course
of tha Group's actvities  Revenue 15 shown net of valus-added tax,
returns, rebates and discounts and after eiminating sales within the
Group

The Group recognises revenus when the amount of revenue can be
reftably measured, it 1s probable that future economic benefits wall flow
to the entity and when specific critena have been met for each of the
Group's actvities as descnbed below The Group basss its estimates
on histoncal resutts, taking into consideration the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement

The Group recognises revenue on sach element of a contract as
follows

® product — revenuse is recogrused when risks and rewards have
passed to the customer and there ts no significant engoing
obligation on the Group,

o professional services — the Group performs a number of
professional services to Its customers These can include
implementation and configuration of the software and traning of
the customer's staff Revenue is recognised as the senvices are
perforrned,

& mairtenance and support — revenues ara recogrised on a
straight line basis over the duration of the contract, and

e Software as a Service ("SaaS”") — revenues compnse fixed
fess and service charges, and, telephony call and transaction
charges Fixed fees and service chargss are recognised on a
straight line basis over the duration of the contract Telephony
call and transaction charges are recognised when the call or
transacton has been delivered over the Group's network

Typically, a number of the above elements may be sold together

as a bundled contract Revenue Is recogrised separately for each
component if t 18 considered to reprasent a separable geod or
senice and a farr value can be reliably established The Group
denves fair value for ts professional services based on day ratas for
consuftants and for product maintenance based on mantsnance
renewal pnces Where software 1s iIncluded within a bundled
arrangement, the residual value of the contract 1s ascnbed to the
software aftar a far value has been allocated to all other components

Deferred revenues pnmanly relate to managed sanvices and customer
support feas, which have been invoiced to the custamer prior to

the performance of these semces Deferred revenue 1s generally
recognised over a penod of 110 3 years

{t) Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the nsks and rewards of
ownership are retaned by the lessor are classified as operating
leases Payments macle under operating leases (net of any Incentves
recaived from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-lne basis over the penod of the isase

{u) Dividend distribution

Dnadend distribution to the Company's shareholders 1s recognised as
a liability in the Group's financial statements In the penod in which the
dndends are approved by the Company's shareholders

Financial risk management

The Board has overall responsibility for the determination of the
Group's financial nsk managsment objectives and policies and,

while retaining utimate responsibility for them, it has delegated the
authonty for designing, operating and reporting thereof to the Group's
finance function The overall objective 1s to set policies that seek to
reduce nsk as far as possible without unduly affecting the Group's
competirveness and flaxbilty Further dstails regarding these policies
are set out below

(a) Financial risk factors

The principal financia! instruments used by the Group are cash and
bank deposts, trade recevebles and trade payables that anse directly
from its operations The main purpose of thasea financial nstrumants
1 to promda finance for the Group’s operations

The main nsks ansing from these financial Instruments aré Markat
nsk {ncluding cumency nsk and interest rate nsk), credrt risk

and Iquidity nsk Risk management 1s camed out by the finance
department under policies approved by the Board of Directors
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Financial risk management continued

Foreign exchange risk

The Group conducts some trade in Swiss francs, Euros and US dollars and thersfore holds a small of amount of cash and trade balances in these
cumsncies, as set out below

Swiss franc US dollar Euro Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At 30 June 2011
Trade and other recesvablas {sxcluding prepayments) 101 27 26 154
Cash and cash equivalents - 8 13 21
Trade and other payables {excluding statutory liabdities) - {33) (10} {43}
101 2 29 132

At 30 June 2010
Trade and other recevables (excluding prepayments) - 44 10 54
Cash and cash equivalents — 15 58 73
- 59 68 127

The Group does not consider there to be a matenal foreign exchange nsk and therefore does not hedge against movements In foreign currency A
10% mevement in the exchange rate betwean stering and the Swigs franc, Euro or US dollar would not have a matenal effect on the net assets or
net profit of the Group

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant debit therefore the Group's intarest rate nsk anses pnncipally from bank depesits The Group manages its cash heid on
depostt to gain reasonable nterest rates whilst mantaining sufficient liquicity to support the Group's strategy by placing a proportion of cash into fixed
term deposits and retanng the balance in current accounts The average interast rate gained on cash held dunng the year was 0 33% (2010 G 13%)
A 1% movement In interest ratés would impact upon equity and net profit by approximataly £48,000

Credit risk

Cradit nsk 15 the nsk of financial koss to the Group if a customer or a countér party to a financial Instrument fals 1o mests 1t contractual obligations
The Group 13 manly exposed to credit nsk from credit sales It 1s Group policy to assess the credit nsk of new customers before entenng contracts
and has a frequant and proactive collections procass  Histoncatly, bad debts acrogs the Group have bean low The concentration of cradit nsk s
Iimtted due to the large and unrelated customer base comprising mainty blue chip compantes and public sector organisations Credit nsk also anses
from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions At the year-end the Group’s cash at bank was held with two
major UK clsanng banks

The Group's exposure to cradit nsk 1s imitad to the camying amount of financial assets recognised at the balance sheet date These are summansed
within note 8 The Group’s management considers that all the above financial assets that ame not impaired for sach of the balance shest dates
under review ana of good credit quality, ncluding those that are past dus See note 10 for mora informatlon of financial assets that are past due

Liquidity risk

Liquidity nsk anses from the Group's management of worlang caprtal It i1s the nsk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial
cbligations as they fall dus The Directors review an annual 12-month financial projection as well as information regarding cash balances on a
monthly basis At the balance sheet date, fiquidity nsk was considered to be low given the fact the Group 1S cash generative, has no borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are thought to be at acceptable levels While the Board considers there to ba no need for borrowing faciities at the
moment it continually monitors the Group's cash requirements
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3 Financial risk management continued
The Group's financial habilthes have contractual matunties as summansed below

Within Between
6 months 6and 12 months Total
£'000 £000 £'000
At 30 June 2011 !
Trade and other payables (excluding statutory labilites and deferred iIncome) 1,802 — 1,902
1,902 - 1,902 :
At 30 June 2010 |
Trade and other payables (excluding statutory labiliies and deferred income) 911 13 924
911 13 924

{b) Capital risk managernent

The Group’s pnmary objective 1s to ensure its continued ability to provide a consistent return for its equity shareholders through a combination of
caprtal growth and through a proposed dmdend policy The Group has no debt or credit facilities An analysis of net caprtal 15 set out in the table
below

2011 2010

£'000 £'000

Cash and cash equivalents 5,885 2,449
Equity attnbutabla to owners of the parent 14,011 5,020
Net capital 8,126 2571

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern In order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders In omder to maintain or adjust the captal structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
pad to sharsholders, return capital to shareholders, or 1ssue new shares or debt The Group has maintained cash balances at a level over 40% of
equrty throughout the period

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historcal expenence and other factors, including expectations of futurs
events that are belleved to be reasonable under the circurnstances  The resufting accounting estimates will, by defintion, seldom equal the related
actual results The estimates and assumptions that have a significant nsk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carying amounts of assats and
kabimies withwn the next financal year are addressed below

Revenue recognition

Revenues for amangaments that involve significant modification or custormisation of the software or extendsd service delivery phases may be
mecogrised based on achivement of contract specific milestones, or using the percentage of completion method depending on tha terms of the
contract The Group determines the stage of completion based on an assessmerit of direct labour costs incurred to date as a percemage of total
estimated project costs required to complete the projact The total amount of accrued ncome at the year-end was £1 01 millon (2010 £102,000)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, ; accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2(h) The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have besn detenmined based on value-in-use calcutations which require the estimation of future cash
flows and the selection of a discount rate In ordler to calculate the present valus of cash flows Further information including the carrying value 1s
given in note 7

Intangible assets

On acquisttion of a business, the Group 1 required to value the assets acquired and recognise intangible assats on the balance sheet The valuation
of these assats relies on vanous assumphons, including future revenues and costs denved from thosa assets and the selection of an appropnate
discount rate in order 1o cakulate the present value of those cash flows Further information including the carmyng value 1s gven i note 7
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements continued

Useful lives of intangible assets

intangible assets ars amortised over their useful Ives in accordance with the accounting policy statad n note 2(h) These useful ives are based on
management’s estimates of the penod that the asssts will generate revenus These estimates are penodically revewsd for continuad appropnateness
Changes to estmates can resuft In significant vanatons in the camyng value and amounts charged to tha Consolidated Income Statement in specrdic
penods The carrying value of Intangible assats 15 gven in note 7 ‘

Share-based payments
The far value of share-based payments Is estmated using the binominal valuation model as at the date of grant and using certain assumptions
These assumplions are disciosed in note 13

Taxation

The Group 1s subject to United Kingdom corporate taxation and judgement 1s required in dstermining the prowsion for income and deferred
taxation The Group racognises taxation agsets and habities based upon estmates and assessments of many factors including past expenence,
advice racenved on the relevant taxation legislation and judgements about the outcoms of futurs events To the extent that the final outcome

of these matters Is different from the amounts recorded, such differences will Impact on the taxation charge made in the Consolidated Income
Statement in the penad in which such determination is made

The Group has tax losses available for camying forward aganst future taxable income of £7 00 million (2010 £7 31 millon) The Group has
recognised a deferred tax asset of £897,000 (2010 £810,000) which 1s 49% of the total loss as management consicder that 1t 1s more likely than not
that the future taxable profits will exceed this amount within the next five years

Segment information

Management consider that there is one operating business segment beaing the design, development, sale and support of software products and
services, which Is consistent with the information reviewed by the Board of Directors when making strategic decisions  Resources are reviewed on
the basis of the whole business performance

The key segmental measure 1s adjusted EBITDA which 15 profit before nterest, taxation, depreciation, amortisation, acguisition and restructunng
expenses and share-based payments as set out in the Consolidated Income Statement

A breakdown of revenue by category is as follows

2011 2010

£'000 £'000

Product and professional serices 4,201 855
Maurtenance and support 5,734 1,604
SaalS 3,591 1,672
13,616 4,131

The business is domicied in the UK The result of its revenue from external customners in the UK1s £13 10 million (2010 £3 63 mullion), and the tatal
trom extarnal customers from other countnes g £0 51 milion (2010 £0 50 mitlion)

All non-current assets are located in the UK

Dunng this financial year reported thereon the Group had no significant customers (customers who generate in excess of 10% of the Group's
revenues) Last year the Group has two customers who were significant and generated revenues of £0 49 million and £0 44 millon respectvely
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6 Propenrty plant and equipment

Furniture,
Computer fittings and
equipment equipment Total
£'000 £'000 £000
Cost
At 1 July 2009 78 200 279
Additions - 49 49
Disposals - (22} {22)
At 30 June 2010 79 227 306
Acquisition of subsidiary (note 27) 46 132 178
Addtions 24 8 30
Disposals {2 (23) {25)
At 30 June 2011 147 342 489
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 July 2009 52 164 216
Depreciation charge 8 22 30
Disposals - (22) {22)
At 30 June 2010 60 164 224
Depreciation charge I 101 128
Disposals 2} {23} (25}
At 30 June 2011 85 242 327
Net book amount
At 30 June 2009 27 36 63
At 30 Jung 2010 18 63 82
At 30 June 2011 62 100 162

Depreciation expensa of £128,000 (2010 £30,000) has been charged in ‘adrministrative expenses’
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7 Intangible assets

Internally
Customer generated
contracts software Trademarks
and Acquired development and
relationships Brand sottware Goodwill costs licences Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 1 July 2009 — - — - - 196 196
Acquisition of subsiciary 500 - 2,223 252 - - 2975
Additions - - - - - 45 45
Disposals — — — — = (3) (3)
At 30 June 2010 500 — 2,223 252 — 238 3,213
Acquistion of subsidiary (note 27} 3,331 50 401 4,789 - 468 9,039
Addtions - - - — 152 70 222
Disposals - — — — — — —
At 30 June 2011 3,831 50 2,624 5,041 152 7768 12,474
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 July 2009 - - - — - 163 163
Armortisation charge 38 - 112 — — 20 170
Disposals — — — — = (3) (3)
At 30 June 2010 38 — 112 — — 180 330
Amortisation charge 559 31 307 — 10 117 1,024
Disposals — — — — — — -
At 30 June 2011 597 31 419 - 10 297 1,364
Net book amount
At 30 June 2009 - — - - - 33 33
At 30 June 2010 462 — 2,111 252 — 58 2,883
At 30 June 2011 3,234 19 2,205 5,041 142 479 11,120

Amortisation of €1 02 milion (2010 £170,000) 1s included within ‘administrative expenses’

Impairment tests for goodwill

As managemant considers there 10 be one operating business segment all of the goodwill 1s allocated to one cash-generating unit The recoverable
amount has been determuned based on value-in-use calculations These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projpctions based on financial forecasts
prepared by management Cash flows beyond the five-year penod covered by the financial forecasts are extrapolated using an estimate growth rate
of zero%

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are pre-tax adjusted discount rate 10% (2010 10%), a growth rete based on the expected
return from the continuing Investment in sales and marketing of its applications, services, and support contracts, and changes in direct costs based
on this investment plan and expectations of future changes in the markst consistent with past expenence
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10

Financial instruments by category

Assets as per balance sheet
2011 2010
£'000 £000
Loans and receivables
Trade and other racesablas exciuding prapayments 3.629 907
Cash and cash equvalents 5,885 2,448
9,514 3,355
Available-for-sale
Investment {ses note below) - -
Total 9,514 3,355

Dunng the year the Group wrote off an investment in Telepost, Inc which had a brought forward histonc cost of £350,000 and net book value of

£nil {see note F of the Company financial statements) This asset had previously been derecognised in 2002

Labiltias per balance sheet

2011 2010

£000 £'000
Financial liabilties at amortised cost
Trade and other payables {excluding statutory liabilities and deferred income) 1,902 924
Total 1,002 924
Inventories

2011 2010

£000 £000
Finished goods and goods for resale 243 31
Trade and other recesvables

2011 2010

£'000 £000
Trade recevables 2,655 904
Less provision for impairment of trade recevables {45) {1)
Trade receivables — net 2,610 903
Other receivables 10 4
Prapayments 320 156
Accrued income 1,009 102

3,049 1,165

All amounts are due within one year The camying value of trade recenvables 15 considered a reasonable approximation of far value

As of 30 June 2011, trade recevables of £2,017,000 (2010 £598,000) were fully performing and £588,000 (2010 £305,000) were past due but
not impairad Both the fully performing and past due but not impared balances relate to a nurmber of ndspendant customers for whom there 1s no

recert history of defautt The agsing analysis of thess trade recervables 1s as follows

2011 2010

£'000 £'000

Not more than 1 month 361 239
More than 1 month but not more than 3 months 173 66
More than 3 months 54 —
588 305
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1

Trade and other receivables continued
As of 30 June 2011, trade recenvables of £50,000 (2010 £1,000) were imparred against which a prowvision of £45,000 (2010 £1,000) has been
recorded The ageing of these recevables 1s as follows

2011 2010

£000 £'000

Not mora than 1 month 5 —
More than 1 month but not mora than 3 months 12 -
More than 3 months 33 1
50 1

Movements on the Group provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows

2011 2010

£'000 £°000

At 1 July 1 7
Acquisition of subsidiary 24 —
Provisions for recetvables impanmant 67 -
Recawvables written oft dunng the yvear as uncollectible {21) {6)
Unusad amounts reversed {26) -
45 1

The creation and release of provision for mparred recevables have been Included in 'administrative expenses’ in the Income statement Amounts
charged to the allowance account are generally written off, when there 1s no expectation of recovenng addsional cash

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impared assets

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting date Is the carrying value of each class of recevable mentoned above The Group does not
hold any collateral as secunty

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other recetvables ars denominated in the following currenciss

2011 2010

£'000 £'000
UK pounds 3,610 1,115
Swiss francs 1 -
Euros 26 10
S dollars 27 40

3,764 1,165
Cash and cash equivalents

2011 2010

£°000 £:000
Cash at bank and on hand 5,885 2,449

Cash and cash equivalents 5,885 2,449
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Share caprtal and premium

Number Ordinary Share

of shares shares premium Total

thousands £°000 £'000 £'000

At 1 July 2009 62,601 3,130 2 3,132
Acquisttion of subsidiary !
— pursuant to Q-Max sale and purchase agresment 1,597 80 - 80 ,

At 30 Juna 2010 64,198 3,210 2 3,212

Proceeds from share 1ssue 22,368 1,118 2,979 4,097
Acquisition of subsidiary {note 27} '

— pursuant to Telephonetics scheme of arangsment 34,6870 1,734 - 1,734

— pursuant to Telephonetics option schames 586 29 - 29

— release of vendor earn out provisions assumed on acguisition
ot Telephonetics 21 29 50
At 30 June 2011 122,248 6,112 3,010 9,122

All issued shares each having a par value of 5 pence are fully paid

The Company issued 22,368,420 new ordinary shares on 26 and 27 July 2010 The farr vatue of the sharas issued amountad 1o £4 25 mullion
(19 pence per share} The related transaction costs amounting to £152,000 have been natted off against the proceeds

The Comparry 1ssued 34,670,092 new ordinary shares on 30 July 2010 to the shareholders of Telaphonetics Ltd (formery Telephonatics plc)
("Telephonstics’) as part of the purchase consideration for 100% of its ordinary share capnal (see note 27) Subsequently on 10 August 2010, the
Company ssued 586,095 new ordinary shares following the exercise of options pursuant to Telephonetics options schemes which were purchased

as part of the acquisition of Telaphonetics by the Company The ordinary shares have the same nghts as the other shares in isste The far value of

the shares issued amountad to £4 05 millon {11 5 pence per share} Pursuant to this acquisition, under Section 512 of the Companies Act 2006,

the Company qualified for merger relief Therefore, no share prermium 18 accountad for in relation to shares ssued In consideration for this senes of
transactons Instead the difference between the nominal value of shares 1ssuad and the farr value of the shares 1ssued 1s credited 1o the merger eserve

The Company Issued 425,530 new ordinary shares on 10 September 2010 in consideration for the release of vendor eam out provisions assumed
by Telephonetics on its acquisiion of Datadialogs Umited The ordinary shares have the same nghts as the Gther sharas In Issue The farr value of
the shares 1ssued amounted to £50,000 (11 75 penca per share)

Share-based payment
Share options are granted to Directors and to certain employees

The Company operates two Enterpnse Management Incentive Schemes which were introduced in 2002 and 2007 (“2002 EMI™ and “2007 EMI") The
2002 EMI scheme options have an exercise pnce basad on the markat pnce of the Company’s shares at the date of grant with a contractual option
term of 10 years and were conditional on the option holder completing 3 years’ serace The 2007 EMI schema options have an exercise pnca of

5 pence and contractual opbon term of 10 years and 1s conditional on the certain vesting entena including performance of the Company's ordinary
share pnce up to 60 pence for five years from the date of grant, and, the option holder being in employmert at the date the option 1s exercised

The Company introduced an unapproved share option scheme in 2009 (*2008 Unapproved”) The options ame granted at an exercise price of 5 pence
Opbons are condrtional on certain vesting crtena including  performance of the Company’s ordinary share prce up to 40 pence from the date of grant
or an annuat Group profit target of up to £2 1 mulion until 30 Septembber 2014, and, the option holder beng n employment at the date the option is
exercised The options have a contractual option tarm of ten years, and once vested up to 100% of the options awarded may be exercised

The Netcall 2011 Long Term Incentive plan {("2011 LTIP") was introduced in Jure 2011 The options ars granted at an exercise pnes of 5 pance
Options are condibonal on certaln vesting cntena ncluding performance of the Company’s ordinary share pnca up to 55 pence from the date of grant
untit 1 January 2017, and, the opbon holder baing in employment at the date the option s exercised The options have a contractual option term of ten
years, and once vested up to 100% of the options awarded may ba exercised
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13 Share-based payment continued

Movaments in the number of share options cutstanding and therr related weightad average exercise pnces arm as follows

2011 2010

Average Average
exercise price 2011 axarcise pnce 2010
in pence Options In pence Options
per share {thousand) per share {thousandy)
At 1 July 74 4,340 68 5,880
Granted 5.0 12,200 - -
Forfertted 250 (400) 50 {1,000)
Exarcised - - 50 (350)
At 30 June 5.2 18,140 74 4,340

Out of the 16,140,000 outstanding options (2010 4,340,000 options}, 2,295,000 options (2010 2,395,000) were exercisable The waighted
average exarcise pnca for options exercisable at the year-end was 5 9 pance (2010 ¢ 2 pence)

The welghted average far value of 2011 LTIP ocptions granted dunng the penod determined using the binomial valuation model was 12 4 pence per
option (2010 none) The significant inputs Into the model wers mid-markat share pnce of 18 pence at the grant date, exercisa price shown above,

volahity of 55%, dividend yield of ni%, an expected option Ife of 5 6 years, an Jliquid share discount of 20%, and, an annual nsk-free Interest rate of
2 2% The volatiity measured at the standard deviation of continuously compounded share retumns 1s based on statisticat analysis of weekly share

pnces over the last four years

See note 20 for the total expense recognised In the Income statement for share options granted to Directors and employees

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry date and exercise pnces

Exercise price

Optlons {thousands)
In pence
Expiry date per share 2011 2010
December 2012 2002 EMI 73 245 245
Decamber 2012 2002 Unapproved 100 100 100
February 2012 2003 Unapproved 200 100 100
February 2014 2004 EMI 250 - 400
September 2014 2009 Unapproved 50 3,370 3,370
January 2017 2007 EMI 50 125 125
July 2021 2011 LTIP 50 12,200 —
16,140 4,340
14 Trade and other payables

2011 2010

£'000 £'000

Trade payabies 279 465
Socal secunty and other taxes an 165
Other labities 131 -
Accrued expensas 1,492 459
Deferred Incomea 4,666 1,180

6,945

2,268
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15 Deferred income tax
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows

2011 2010

£'000 £'000
At 1 Juty 680 859
Acquistion of subsidiary (note 27) (1,629) {(140)
Income statement credit {note 23) 219 261
At 30 June (130) 80

The movement In defarred Income tax assets and habilites dunng the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balancas within the

samae tax junsciiction, 15 as follows

Other
Acquired temporary
intangibles differences Total
Deferred tax liabllities £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 July 2009 - - -
Acquistion of subsidiary 140 - 140
Credrted to the income statermnent (10) — {10}
At 30 June 2010 130 — 130
Acqusihion of subsidiary (note 27) 1,034 111 1,145
{Cradited)/charged to the income statement (255) 7 (248)
At 30 June 2011 09 118 1,027
Accelarated Other
tax temporary
Tax losses depreciation differences Total
Deferred tax assets £'000 £1000 £'000 £°000
At 1 July 2009 559 - — 550
Credted 10 the income statement 251 - — 251
At 30 June 2010 810 - — 810
Acquisiion of subsidiary (note 27) 84 26 8 116
Credited/{charged) to the Income statement (57) 28 — {26)
At 30 June 2011 837 54 (] 897

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses avallable for camying forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits 1s probable The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of £1 06 milhon (2010 £1 24 million) in respect of losses
amounting to £4 07 million (2010 £4 41 milllon) that can be carned forward against future taxable income, or, £1 74 milien (2010 £1 87 millien) in
respect of losses that are capital n nature amounting to £6 68 million (2010 £6 68 mifion)

A deferred tax assst of £86,000 (2010 £74,000) in relation to tming difference due to share-based payment charges of £330,000 (2010 £263,000)

has not been recognised
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16 Provisions

Dilapidations Vacant property Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 July 2009 and 30 June 2010 — - -
Acquisstion of subsidiary {note 27) 70 - 70
Charged 1o the income staterment 4 187 191
Releasad unused to the ncome statement {49) - (49)
Used dunng the vear — {17) (17)
At 30 June 2011 25 170 195
Analysis of total prowisions
2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Non-current 25 -
Currant 170 —
165 —

(a) Dilapidations

The ditapidations prowvsion prowvides for the estimated costs of restonng the Group's isasshold properties at lease tarms, to the condibion 1n which
they were orignally leased Dunng the year a number of laases wem renegotiated resulting in histoncal obligations being waved, as a result £49,000
was released to the ncorme statement The maonty of the provision 1s anticipated to be utlised In 2018

(b} Vacant property
As part of a reorgarusation, following the acquisiion of Telephonetics Ltd, the Group vacated a number of leasehold properties

A provision of £187,000 has been mada in the year for the residual lease commitments {inciuding associated dlapdations), togsther with outgoings,
after talang into account estimated possible sub-let iIncome Prowviston 1s anticipated to be utilised m the next 12 months

17 Other gains/(losses) — net

2011 2010

£'000 £'000
Net foreign exchange gans/{losses) 18 (11)

18 Expenses by nature

2011 2010

£'000 £'000
Inventory expense 565 9
Employse benefit expense (note 20) 7,678 2,081
Depreciation and amortisation (notes 6 and 7) 1,152 200
Operating lease payments (note 26) 196 56
Qther expenses 3,502 2,022
Total cost of sales and administrative expenses 13,093 4,368

Ounng the year the Group acqurred Telephonstics Ltd (nots 27) and incurred £38,000 {2010 £916,000) of acquisition costs, prncipally professional
adwiser fees, (ncluded within ‘other expenses’} The subsequent recrganisation resufted in restructunng charges to the income statement of
£910,000 (2010 £nif) comprsing £630,000 of redundancy costs included within ‘employee benefit expenss’, and, £187,000 of provisions for
vacant property and £93,000 of prefessional adviser and contract termination costs both included wathin ‘other expenses’

The associated cash flows dunng the year were £806,000 and £666,000 for acquistion and reorganisation ¢osts respectively (2010 £388,000
acquistion costs only), lsaving £297,000 carmed forward in trade and other payables and provisions to be settled dunng the next year
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19 Services provided by the Company’s auditer and its associates

21

2011 2010
£°000 £:000
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of parent and consolidated financial statements 19 10
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for other services
— the audit of the Company's subsidianes pursuant to legisiation 47 14
-~ raview intenm report 4 -
— corporate senices - 155
— tax services — 4
T0 183
Employee benefit expense
2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Wages and salanes, including restructunng costs £630,000 {2010 £nil) (note 18) 6,910 1,656
Less internal devalopment costs capitalised in the year {152) -
Social security costs €95 194
Share options granted to Directors and employees (see note 13) 105 205
Pension costs -~ defined contnbution plans 120 26
7,678 2,081
Average number of people employed
2011 2010
Average number of people {including executive Directors) employed
Sales and marketing 40 13
Development and apserations 56 7
Management and admirsstration 17 B
Total average headcount 113 26
Finance income and costs
2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Interest expense
— bank charges 8 —
Finance costs 8 -
Finance mcome
— interest on short-term bank deposits 13 13
Finance income 13 —
Net finance income 5 13
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23 Tax expense

2011 2010
£'000 £°000

Current tax
Cumrent tax on profits for the year 78 -
Total current tax 78 —
Defarred tax {note 15)
Ongination and raversal of temporary differences {175) {261)
impact of change i the UK tax rate 44) —
Total deferred tax (219) (261}
Tax expense/(income) {141) (261}

The tax credit on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the thecretical amount that would anse using the standard rate of corporation tax i the

UK as explained below

201 2010
£'000 £'000
Profit/{loss) before tax 548 {235)
Tax expense/{cred) calculated at 26% (2010 28%) 141 {66)
Tax effects of
- expenses not deductble for tax purposas 55 325
— addrtonal daductions for R&D expenditure {46) -
— utiisation of previousty unrecogrused tax lossas {331) (238)
— tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised 56 -
— other short-term temporary differences 26 (32)
— marginal rate relief 2 -
Remeasurement of deferred tax — change in UK tax rate (44) —
Racognition of defamed tax asset - {250)
Tax credit (141} (261)

During the year, as a result of the change in the UK corporation tax rate from 28% to 26% that was substantwvely enacted on 29 March 2011 and
that became effective from 1 April 2011, the relevant deferred tax halances have been remeasurad Further reductions to the UK tax rate to 23% ars
not expectad to be substantvely anacted unhi future finance bils are approved and therefore are not recognised in these financial statements

Earnings per share
(a) Baslic and diluted

The basic earmings per share 1s calculated by dwviding the net profit attributable to equity holders of the Compary by the weighted average number

of ordinary shares in 1ssue dunng the year

2011 2010
Net sarnings attnbutable to ordinary shareholders (€000} 687 26
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue (thousands) 117,769 63,795
Basic earnings per share (pence) 0.58 004

The diuted earnings per share has been calculated by dwding the net profit attnbutable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted averags number

of shares in 1ssued dunng the year, adjusted for potentally diutive shares that are not anti-dilutve

2011 2010
Waeighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssus (thousands) 117,769 63,785
Adustments for share options (thousands}) 1,670 1,052
Waeighted average number of potential ordinary shares in 1ssue {thousands} 119,439 64,847
Ciluted earnings per share (pence) 0.58 004
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24 Earnings per share continued
(b) Adjusted basic and diuted

Adjusted and basic eamnings per share have been calculated to exclude the effect of acquistion and reorganisation costs, shara-based payrnent
charges, amortisation of acquired intangible assats and utilisation of histonc tax losses The Board believes #us gives a better view of ongotng
mantanable eamings The table below sets out a reconciliation of the earnings usad for the calculation of samings per share to that used in the

calculation of adjusted sarnings per share

2011 2010

£'000 £'000

Profit used for calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share 687 26

Acquistion costs 38 916

Reorganisation costs 910 -

Share-based payments 105 205

Amortisation of acquired intangible asssts 897 150

Tax adjustment {793) (551)

| Profit used for calculation of adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share 1,844 746

25 Dividends per share

reflect this dmdend payable

26 Commitments
(a) Caplital commtments
Caprtal expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting penod but not yet incurred is as follows

No dwdends were paid in the years ending 30 June 2011 or 2010 A dwdend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2011 of O 4 pence per share,
amounting to a total dvidend of £489,000, s proposed at the Annual General Meeting on 24 November 2031 These financial statements do not

2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Property, plant and equipment 139 -
Total 139 -

{b) Operating lease commitments
contain renewal or purchase options or escalation clauses or any restnctions regarding further leasing

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

The Group leases vanous offices under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The lease terms are batwesen 1 and 7 years and none of them

2011 2010
£'000 £'000
No later than 1 year 139 56
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 ysars 305 58
Later than S years 137 -

Total 581

114
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27 Business combinations
©On 30 July 2010, the Company acquwed the antire issusd shars caprtal of Telephonetics Ltd (formerty Telephonetics Plc a company iIncorporated
In England & Wales), {“Telephonetics”™}, a UK-based prowder of speech automation and data integration solutions, by way of a schema of
amangement The consideration for the acquisition was £9 88 million compnsing £5 78 milion cash and £4 10 milkon shares (35,256,187 {including
those 1ssued on 10 August) new ordinary shares ssued of 5 pence each at 11 5 pence) Further detalls regarding the acquistion, ncluding the
rationale for the combination, are included in the Chairman’s and Chef Executive's review

In additon, on 10 September 2010 the Company pad £100,000 for the early settiernent of the vendor aam out assumed by Telephonetics on the
acquisttion of Datadialogs Linited The consideration was satisfied by payment of £50,000 and 1ssue of 425,540 new ordinary shares of 5 pence
each at 11 75 pance per share (the Company’s cosing mid-market share pnce quoted by the London Stock Exchange on the 9 Saptember 2010}

Analysis of assets and liabilities acquired

Fair Far

Book value value on

value adjustments acquisition

£'000 £'000 £'000
Property, plant and equiprment 178 - 178
Intangible asssts 12,494 {8,244) 4,250
Inventones 359 — 359
Trade and other recevables — gross 1,829 - 1,929
Trade and other recenvables — provision {24) - 24)
Cash and cash equivalents 4,723 —_ 4,723
Trade and other payables {5,.224) - (5,224}
Provisions {70) - 7O
Deforred tax asset/(labilty) (134) (895) 1,029)
Net assets acguired 14,231 {9,139) 5,092
Goodwill 4,789
Consideration paid 9,881
Satisfied by
Cash consideration 5,779
Sharaes 1ssued 4,102
Total purchase consideration 9,881
Net cash flow on acquisition
Cash consideration 5779
Cash acquired (4,723)
Cash flow on acquisition 1,056

The goodwill of £4 79 million ansing from the acquisition 15 attnbutable to the expected synergistic benefits expacted from combining the operations
of Telephonetics and Netcall Including the signficantly expanded human capital that the skalled workforce of Telephonetics provides

Fair value adjustments
On acquistion of Telephonetics, all assets were far valued and appropnate Intangible assets recogised following the prnciples of IFRS3 A deferred

tax hability related to these Intangible assets was also recognised Management identfied three matenal intangile assets ()} customer relationships,
iy software, and (i) brand

The customer relatonships Intangible asset acquirad with Telephonetics were valued using the excess eamings method The value of this intangible
assat at acquisibon 1s £3 33 millon Management believe that these customer relationships have a minimum ussful economic Ife of s years
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27 Business combinations continued
The software acquired with Telephonetics remains at their camying valus The value of this intangible asset at acquistion 1s £869,000 (including
previously capitahised development expenditure totafing £401,000, software licences held for use in the busness and Datadialogs Limited
software capitalised at the point of ts acquistion totaling £468,000) Management believe that this software has a minimum useful economic life
of four years

The Telephonetics brand was valued using the rehef from royalty method The valus of this intangible asset at acquisiuon 1s £50,000 Managerment
believe that this brand value has a minimum useful economic life of 18 months

A £895,000 credtt to deferred tax has been made to record the liabiity ansing on these intangible assets

Impact of acquisition on results of the Group

The acquired business contnbuted revenues of £9 78 milken and net profit of £0 51 millon (after related amortsation charges and tax credits) to the
Group for the period 31 July 2010 to 30 June 2011 If the acquisition had occurmed on 1 July 2010, management estmate the business would have
gensrated revenues of £14 43 millon and net profit of £0 51 millon (after related amortisation charges and tax credits) Acquisition costs of £38,000
{2010 £916.000) have been charged to the income statement as incumed

28 Related-party transactions
Netcall plc 15 the parent and utitmate controling company of the Group

(a) Sale and purchase of goods and services

Transactions between the Company and its subbsidianes, whom are ralated parties, have been elirminated on consolidation and are therefore not
disclosad

{b) Key management compensation

Key management 15 the Executive and Non-Executive Diractors of the Company The compensation paid or payable to key management for
employos Sericas 1S shown below

2011 2010

£'000 £°000

Short-term amployee benefits 924 308

Share-based payments 105 173

Total 1,029 481
{c) Directors

2011 2010

£'000 £'000

Aggregate emoluments 739 263

Company contnbutions to money purchase pension schemes 89 13

Total 828 276

Detalls of indvidual Director’s emoluments are set out on page 9 of the Directors” report

29 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

On 26 July 2011, 2,922,223 share options were grantad to certain employees of the Group under the 2011 LTIP scheme {expiry date
25 July 2021)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

30 Principal subsidiaries

Proportion of

Proportion of  ordinary shares

Country Nature of ordinary shares held by

of incorporation business  held by parent the Group

Netcall Talacorn Limited UK Telecormns softwane 0% 100%
Telephonetics Ltd UK Intermediate holding company 100% 0%
Datadalogs Limited UK Dormant company 0% 100%
Netcall Telecom Inc us Dormant company 0% 100%
Netcall Telecom (Europe) Ltd UK Dormant company 100% 0%
Netcall UK Limrted UK Dormant company 100% 0%
Q-Max Systemns Limited UK Dormart company 100% 0%
Voics Integrated Products Ltd UK Dormant company 0% 100%

All subsidiary undertakings are mcluded in the consolidation The propartion of the veting nghts in the subsidiary undartalangs held dactly by the
Parent Company do not differ from the proportion of ordinary shares held
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Company Balance Sheet z: & % suno 2011

2011 2010
Notes £'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets E 1,970 2,130
Investments F 18,531 11,257
20,501 13,387
Current assets
Cebtors G 686 266
Cash at bank and In hand 4,643 2,118
5,329 2,381
Creditors. amounts falling due within one year H {571) (2,254)
Net current assets 4,758 127
Total assets less current liabilities 25,250 13,514
Net assets 25,259 13,154
Capital and reserves
Share caprtal J 6,112 3,210
Share premium K 3,010 2
Capnial reserve K 188 188
Merger reserve K 520 623
Employee share schemes reserve K 306 240
Retained samings K 15,123 9,251
Sharsholders’ tunda 25,259 13,514

The notes on pages 44 to 47 form part of thesa financtal statements

These financial statements on pages 43 10 47 were approved and authonsed tor issue by the Board of Directors on 23 September 2011 and wera

signed on nts behalf by

James Ormondroyd
Director

Netcall pic
Registered no 1812912
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

A

Principal accounting policies

The following accounting pelicies have been applisd consistently in
dsaling with tems which are considerad matenal n relation to the
Company’s financial statements

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared In accordance with
applicable accounting standards generally accepted n the Unitad
Kingdom and under the histoncal cost convention The financial
staternents have been prepared on the going concern basis

(b} Profit and loss account

Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2008 the Company 1s
exampt from the requirement to present its own profit and loss
account The profit for the year ended 30 June 2011 1s disclosed in
note D

{c) Turnover
Turnover 15 royalties receved from the Company's subsidianes, which
1S recognised on an as earned basis

{d) Tax

Current tax is prowided at amounts expected 1o be paid {or recovered)
using the tax rates and laws that have besn enacted or substantvaly
enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 13 recognised, without discounting, in respect of al
timing differences between the treatment of certain tems for taxation
and accounting purposss which have ansen but not reversed by

the balance sheet date, except as otherwise required by Financial
Reporting Standard 18 Deferred Tax Dafarred taxation assets are
recognised to the extent that 1t Is regarded as more likely than not
that they will be recoverad

(e) Intangible fixed assets

Intangfble fixed assets are stated at cost net of amortisation and any
provision for impairment Amortisation 1s provided on cost in squal
annual amounts over the estimated useful Iives of the assets The
rates of amortisation ame as follows

e Trademarks and iicences — 5 years
e Acquired software — 15 years

{f) Investments in subsidiary undertakings

Investments are stated at cost less provision for any impanment
Where the Company has acquired an Invastment in a subsidiary
undertaking and elected under section 612 of the Companies

Act 2006 to apply merger reltef, the investment in the subsidiary
undertaking 1s recorded In the Group Company's balance sheet at the
nominal amount of the shares issued

{g) Impatrment of fixed assets

The camying valuss of fixed assets are reviewad for Impaimment when
a tnggenng event anses that indicates assets rmught be impaired
Impaiment is assessed by companng the camying value of tha

asset aganst the higher of its realisable value and value in use Any
provision for imparment 1s charged to the profit and loss account mn
the year concemed

{(h) Financial liabilities and equity

Financial babilities and equity Instruments are classified according

to the substance of the contractual arangements entered INto An
aquity Instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest In
the assets of the Company after dsducting all of its liabiites Equrty
Instruments 1ssuad are recorded at the proceeds racewved, net of
diract 1ssug costs

{0} Share-based payments

The Company operates equity-settied share-based option plans

The far value of the employee semces recerved In exchange for the
parucipation in the plan 1s recognised as an expensa in the profit and
loss account The Company has accounted for options granted to
the employees of subsidiary undertakings as capital contnbutions,
which have been recharged to the mtermediate company holding
the nvestment The comesponding credtt has been recognised in the
employee share schemes raserve

The far value of the employes semvice is based on the far value of the
equity Instrument granted This expense 1s spread over the vasting
penod of the mstrument The comesponding entry 1s cracited to equity

The liahiity for social secunty costs ansing in relation to the awards s
measured at each reporting date basad upon the share pnce at the
reporting date and the elapsed portion of the relevant vesting panods
to the extent that it 1s considersd that a liability will arise

(i} Dvidends

Dividend distnbutions to the Company's sharehotders are racogrised
In the penod when pad or, if earler, In which the dvidend 1s approved
by the Company’s sharehciders

Employees and Directors

The Company employed an average of 2 employees {including
exacutive Directors) dunng the year (2010 1) The only employees of
the Company are the executive Dvectors Directors’ remuneration has
been disclosed within the Directors' report on page 8
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C Services provided by the Company’s auditor and its associates
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audrt of the Company's accounts and for other services ara set out in note 19 of the consolidated
financial statements

D Profit for the financial year
The Company made a profit for the financial year of £5,731,000 (2010 loss £491,000)

E Intangible assets
Acquired Trademarks

software and licences Total
£°000 £'000 £/000
Cost
At 1 July 2009 - 113 113
Additions 2,223 - 27223
At 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2011 2,223 113 2,338
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 Juty 2009 - a [e3l
Amaortisation charge 112 3 115
At 30 June 2010 112 94 208
Amortisation charge 147 13 160
At 30 June 2011 259 107 366
Net book amount
At 30 June 2009 —- 22 22
At 30 June 2010 2111 19 2,130
At 30 June 2011 1,064 -] 1,970
F Fixed asset investments
Subsidiary
undertakings Other Total
£'000 £000 £000
GCost
At 1 Juty 2009 10,990 350 11,340
Additions — acquisiton of Q-Max Systems Ltd 303 — 303
At 30 Juna 2010 11,293 350 11,643
Addtions — acqusition of Telephonetics Ltd 7.492 — 7,492
Disposals (see below) (254) - (254)
Wite off (see below) - (350) (350)
At 30 June 2011 18,531 - 18,531
Provision
At 1 July 2008 and 30 June 2010 36 350 386
Disposals (36) - (36)
witte off — {350) (350)
At 30 June 2011 - - -
Net book amount
At 30 June 2008 10,954 - 10,954
At 30 June 2010 11,257 — 11,257
At 30 June 2011 18,531 — 18,531

A number of dormant subsiciary undertalangs were efiminated dunng the year at £rul charge to the profit and loss account The Company’s
subsidianes at the year-end are set out in note 30 of the consoldated financial statements

The Company has written off its investment in Telepost, Inc a US corporation which ceased 1o trade i 2001 and s currently suspended under
US state law




46
Netcall ple Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 30 June 2011

Notes to the Company Financial Statements contnued

G Debtors
2011 2010
£000 £'000
Amoums due within one year
Amounts owed from Group undertalangs 407 -
Other debtors - 1
Prepayments and accrued Incoms 47 15
454 16
Amounts due after more than one year
Deferrad tax asset 232 250
232 250
Total debtors 686 266
H Credstors: amounts falling due within one year
2011 2010
£°000 £000
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 5 1.882
Trade payables 17 —
Other craditors 23 -
Social secunty and other taxes 21 13
Accruals and defered iIncome 505 359
571 2,254
I Deferred taxation
2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Provision for defarred tax comprises
Losses 232 250
Opening balance 250 -
Movament in the year {18) 2580
Closing balance 232 250

Dunng the year, as a result of the change in the UK corporation tax rates from 28% to 26% that was substantvely enacted on 28 March 2011 and
effective from 1 Apnl 2011, deferred tax balances have been rermeasured This has resulted n a credrt to the profit and loss account of £18,000

The deferred tax asset 1s disclosed within other debtors

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses camed forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable

profits 1S probable The Company has not recognised a deferred tax asset of £544,000 (2010 £644,000) in respect of losses amounting to

£2 10 milion (2010 £2 30 milkon) that can be camed forward against future taxable income, or, £1 74 mllion 2010 £1 87 million) in respect of

losses that are capital In nature amounting to £6 68 millon (2010 £6 68 million)
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J Called up share capHal

2011 20 2010 2010
thousands £'000 thousands 2000

Allocated, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 5 pence each 122,248 8,112 64,198 3210

Details of the share options and share capital issued by the Company are detaled in notes 12 and 13 of the consohdated financal statements

K Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

Employee
share Profit
Share Share Capital Merger schemes and loss
capital premium reserves reserve reserve account Total
£'000 £:000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 1 July 2010 3,210 2 188 623 240 9,251 13,514
Profit for the year - — - - - 5731 5731
Issue of share capital
- for cagh 1,118 3,131 - - - - 4,249
— cost of 1ssuing share capital - (152) - - - - (152)
— inrespect of acquistion of subsichanes 1,784 26 - - - - 1,813
Share-based payment
— charge - - — - 104 - 104
- reclassification - - - - (38) 38 -
Trangfer™® - — — {103} — 103 —
At 30 June 2011 6,112 3,010 188 520 306 15,123 25,259

M A number of dormant subsidiary undlertatangs were eliminated dunng the year at £nif charge to the profitand loss account The Company’s
subsidianes at the year-end are s&t out in note 30 of the consolidated financial staterments

L Related party transactions
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption granted FRSE not to disclose transactions with the parent and wholly-owned subsidiaries
Thers were no other related party transactions during ather 2011 or 2010

M Post balance sheet events
A dvidend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2011 of 0 4 pence per share, amounting to a total dnadend of £489,000, Is proposed at the Annual
General Meating on 24 November 2011

On 26 July 2011, 2,922,223 share options were granted to cartam employees of the Group under the 2011 LTIP scheme (expiry date
25 July 2021)
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